
 

1 
 

 
AGENDA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
August 02, 2021 

2:00 p.m. 
 

Meeting location:  Central Florida Expressway Authority 
4974 ORL Tower Road 

Orlando, FL 32807 
Boardroom 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Pursuant to Section 286.0114, Florida Statutes and CFX Rule 1-1.011, the Finance Committee provides for an opportunity for 
public comment at the beginning of each regular meeting. The Public may address the Committee on any matter of public 
interest under the Committee's authority and jurisdiction, regardless of whether the matter is on the Committee's agenda but 
excluding pending procurement issues. Each speaker shall be limited to 3 minutes. The Public may also submit written 
comments in advance of the meeting to be read into the record except that if the comments exceed 3 minutes in length, when 
read, they will only be attached as part of the minutes. 
 

C. APPROVAL OF MARCH 31, 2021 FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES (action item)  
 

D.  AGENDA ITEMS  
 

1. BOND REFUNDINGS UPDATE – Hope Scarpinato, Senior Managing Consultant, PFM Financial Advisors, 
LLC (info item) 

   
2. REVIEW OF DEBT POLICY – Lisa Lumbard, Chief Financial Officer and Hope Scarpinato, Senior 

Managing Consultant, PFM Financial Advisors, LLC (action item) 
 
3. REVIEW OF INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY – Lisa Lumbard, Chief Financial Officer 

and Hope Scarpinato, Senior Managing Consultant, PFM Financial Advisors, LLC (action item) 
 
4. ANNUAL INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW – Steve Alexander, Managing Director, PFM Asset 

Management, LLC and Scott Sweeten, Senior Managing Consultant, PFM Asset Management, LLC (info 
item) 

 
5. REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICY – Lisa Lumbard, Chief Financial Officer, 

Steve Alexander, Managing Director, PFM Asset Management, LLC and Scott Sweeten, Senior Managing 
Consultant, PFM Asset Management, LLC (action item) 

 
E. OTHER BUSINESS  

 
F. ADJOURNMENT 

 
(CONTINUED ON PAGE 2) 

 
 
 



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 

This meeting is open to the public. 
 

Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes states that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by a board, agency, or 
commission with respect to any matter considered at a meeting or hearing, they will need a record of the proceedings, and 
that, for such purpose, they may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

 
Persons who require translation services, which are provided at no cost, should contact CFX at (407) 690-5000 x5316 or by 
email at Iranetta.Dennis@cfxway.com at least three (3) business days prior to the event. 

 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person with a disability as defined by the ADA needs 
special accommodations to participate in this proceeding, then they should contact the Central Florida Expressway Authority 
at (407) 690-5000 no later than two (2) business days prior to the proceeding. 

 
Please note that participants attending meetings held at the CFX Headquarters Building are subject to certain limitations and 
restrictions in order to adhere to the CDC guidelines and to ensure the safety and welfare of the public. 

mailto:Iranetta.Dennis@cfxway.com
mailto:Iranetta.Dennis@cfxway.com


C. 
APPROVAL OF  

MARCH 31, 2021 
FINANCE 

COMMITTEE 
MEETING MINUTES 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

March 31, 2021 
 

Location: Central Florida Expressway Authority 
4974 ORL Tower Road 

Orlando, FL 32807 
Boardroom 

 
 
 
Committee Members Present:  
Lorie Bailey Brown, Seminole County Representative, Chairman 
Amanda Clavijo, Osceola County Representative 
Kurt Petersen, Orange County Representative 
 
Committee Members Not Present:  
Jennifer Barker, Lake County Representative 
Chris McCullion, City of Orlando Representative 
 
Also Present: 
Laura Kelley, Executive Director 
Lisa Lumbard, Chief Financial Officer 
Glenn Pressimone, Chief of Infrastructure 
Woody Rodriguez, General Counsel 
Michael Carlisle, Director of Accounting and Finance 
Rita Moore, Recording Secretary/Executive Administrative Coordinator 
Brent Wilder, Managing Director, PFM 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at approximately 1:00 p.m. by Chairman Bailey Brown. 

 
 

B. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment.  
 

 
C. APPROVAL OF THE JULY 24, 2020 MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Clavijo and seconded by Mr. Petersen to approve the July 24, 2020 
minutes as presented. The motion carried unanimously with three (3) members voting AYE by voice 
vote. Ms. Barker and Mr. McCullion were not present. 
 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
March 31, 2021 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
D. AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1. BUDGET: DRAFT FY 2022 OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & ADMINISTRATION/ FY 2022 
THROUGH 2026 FIVE-YEAR WORK PLAN 

 
Ms. Lisa Lumbard, Chief Financial Officer summarized the Fiscal Year 2022 Operations, Maintenance & 
Administration Budget. Mr. Glenn Pressimone, Chief of Infrastructure summarized the FY 2022-2026 Five-
Year Work Plan.  

 
The Committee members asked questions which were answered by Ms. Lumbard. 
 

 
A motion was made by Ms. Clavijo and seconded by Mr. Petersen to accept the Budget: Draft FY 
2022 Operations, Maintenance & Administration/ FY 2022 through 2026 Five-Year Work Plan as 
presented. The motion carried unanimously with three (3) members voting AYE by voice vote. Ms. 
Barker and Mr. McCullion were not present. 
 
 

2. DEBT OVERVIEW 
 
Mr. Brent Wilder, Managing Director, PFM presented the Debt Overview. 
 
The Committee members asked questions which were answered by Mr. Wilder. 
 
(This item was presented for information only. No formal committee action was taken.) 
 

 
3. REFUNDING OPPORTUNITIES 

 
Mr. Brent Wilder, Managing Director, PFM presented the Refunding Opportunities.  
 
Mr. Wilder presented recommendations on bond refunding opportunities and next steps. 
 
The Committee members asked questions which were answered by Mr. Wilder and Ms. Lumbard. 
 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Clavijo and seconded by Mr. Petersen to accept the refunding 
opportunities as presented. The motion carried unanimously with three (3) members voting AYE by 
voice vote. Ms. Barker and Mr. McCullion were not present. 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
March 31, 2021 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
E. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
No other business was reported. 

 
 
 

F. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Chairman Bailey Brown adjourned the meeting at approximately 02:05 p.m. 
 
 

 
Minutes approved on _________, 2021.  
 
Pursuant to the Florida Public Records Law and CFX Records Management Policy, audio tapes of all Board and applicable 
Committee meetings are maintained and available upon request to the Records Management Liaison Officer at 
publicrecords@CFXway.com or 4974 ORL Tower Road, Orlando, FL 32807.  

mailto:publicrecords@CFXway.com


 
 

D.1 
BOND 

REFUNDINGS 
UPDATE 

 



© PFM 1

Central Florida Expressway Authority

August 2021

PFM Financial Advisors LLC 300 S. Orange Ave.,

Suite 1170

Orlando, FL 32801

407.648.2208

pfm.com

Overview of 2021 Refunding Issues



© PFM 2

2021 Plan of Finance Development
 In February of 2021, PFM identified the opportunity to issue Tax-Exempt refunding bonds to refund 

the Series 2008B Bonds, and terminate the associated swaps, at or near a present value breakeven

 The refinancing was estimated to result in a breakeven due to:

 Tax-Exempt municipal interest rates being near historic lows

 Tax-Exempt Municipal to Taxable US Treasury ratios being at historic lows

 The Series 2021 Bonds were entirely insured and priced without an underlying rating, to allow CFX 

to enter the market when conditions were most favorable to obtain a breakeven

 A single underlying rating was received by S&P prior to close as a condition of the Bond Purchase 

Agreement



© PFM 3

Summary of the Series 2021 Bonds
 $548,175,000 Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 ( the “Series 2021 Bonds”) were 

sold via negotiated sale on April 6, 2021

 Purpose of Issue:
• Refund the outstanding Series 2008B Bonds (the “Refunded Bonds”) in the amount of 

$493,490,000
• Terminate the associated swaps
• Pay the premium on a reserve account credit facility, premium on a municipal bond insurance 

policy and costs of issuance

 Payments:  Principal paid annually on July 1, from July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2040

 True Interest Cost: 1.98%

 Optional Redemption:  Bonds are subject to optional redemption on or after July 1, 2031

 The final pricing of the Series 2021 Bonds and the final termination values of the swaps resulted in a 
net present value breakeven, with present value benefits at $159,012.81

 Due to the termination of the swaps on April 6, 2021, CFX realized an additional $1,034,111.37 in 
interest rate savings between the termination date and settlement date of the bonds. The total net 
present value benefits were $1,193,124.18



© PFM 4

2021BC Plan of Finance Development & RFP Process

 On March 31, 2021, the Finance Committee approved a competitive bank loan solicitation for 
refunding the Series 2012 and 2013B bonds 

 On April 30, 2021, PFM, on the behalf of Central Florida Expressway Authority (“CFX”) issued a 
Request for Proposals to a broad list of local, regional and national financial institutions to provide for 
the purchase through direct placement of two revenue refunding bonds

• Refunding Bond, Series 2021B (refunding of Series 2012 Bonds) NTE $90,500,000

• Refunding Bond, Series 2021C (refunding of Series 2013B Bond) NTE $55,000,000

 CFX requested proposals based upon (A) a taxable rate for the term of the loan, or (B) a taxable rate 
through the call date of the refunded bonds and a tax-exempt fixed interest rate thereafter

 On the due date, May 21, CFX received a total of 9 proposals.

 PFM recommended, and CFX staff agreed, CFX award the 2021B Bond to Key Government Finance 
and the 2021C Bond to Citizens First Bank.

• Citizens First Bank and Key Government Finance provided the lowest rate bids for the series they 
were awarded and offered to lock rates in advance of board approval to avoid interest rate risk. 

• On June 10, 2021, the CFX Board approved staff’s recommendation



© PFM 5

Summary of the Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2021B
 $88,135,000 Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2021B (the “Series 2021B Bond”) was 

directly placed with Key Government Finance, Inc. on June 24, 2021 following a competitive 

solicitation process

 Purpose of Issue:  To refund outstanding Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2012 and pay costs of 

issuance

 Interest Rate:

• Taxable interest rate of 0.8695% 
• Conversion to Tax-exempt interest rate of 0.6869 on April 4, 2022

 Payments:  Principal is due annually commencing July 1, 2022 until final maturity of July 1, 2025

 Optional Redemption:  The Series 2021B Bond is prepayable in whole or in part at any time, without 
penalty, at par.

 Savings:  CFX was able to realize $5,638,963  in NPV Savings, 6.40% of the refunded par amount.



© PFM 6

Summary of the Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2021C

 $53,145,000 Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2021C (the “Series 2021C Bond”)   was 
directly placed with Citizens First Bank on June 24, 2021 following a competitive solicitation process

 Purpose of Issue:  To refund outstanding Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2013B and pay costs of 
issuance

 Interest Rate:  Taxable Interest rate of 0.80%

 Payments:  Principal is due annually commencing July 1, 2022 until final maturity on July 1, 2025

 Optional Redemption:  The Series 2021C Bond is prepayable in whole or in part after July 1, 2023 
without penalty.

 Savings:  CFX is able to realize $2,222,586 in NPV Savings, 4.60% of the refunded par amount.



© PFM 7

2021D Plan of Finance Development
 On March 31, 2021, the Finance Committee approved a cash optimization transaction to cash 

defease the Series 2013A Bonds and issue new money bonds

 The 2013A Bonds were non-callable until July 2023 so through cash optimization, CFX was able to 
mimic a tax-exempt current refunding 

 On July 1, 2021, CFX defeased the 2013A Bond by funding an escrow 

 The total escrow cost was $265 million

 On July 15th, CFX issued new money bonds to fund $265 million of future capital costs



© PFM 8

Summary of the Senior Lien Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2021D

 $198,435,000 Senior Lien Revenue Bond, Series 2021D (the “Series 2021D Bonds”) were sold via 
negotiated sale on July 15, 2021

 Purpose of Issue:  
• To finance certain costs within the five-year work program and pay costs of issuance
• Pay the premium on a reserve account credit facility, premium on a municipal bond insurance policy 

and costs of issuance

 Payments:  Principal is due annually commencing July 1, 2026 until final maturity on July 1, 2035

 True Interest Cost: 1.67%

 Optional Redemption:  Bonds are subject to optional redemption on or after July 1, 2031

 Savings:  The final pricing of the Series 2021D Bonds, combined with the defeasance of the 2013A 
Bonds resulted in a net present value savings of over $60 million or 24.8% of refunded par



 
 

D.2 
REVIEW OF 

DEBT POLICY 
 
 
 



 

, 
Debt Policy 

 
I. Purpose  

 
The purpose of this Central Florida Expressway Authority (CFX) Debt Policy is to establish 
guidelines and a framework for the issuance and management of CFX's debt. CFX is committed 
to consistent, best practices financial management, including maintaining the financial strength 
and flexibility of CFX and the full and timely repayment of all financial obligations. CFX will 
be open to recommendations or ideas for any proposed transaction as well as variations from the 
following guidelines provided that such variation shall be fully examined in conjunction with 
CFX's advisors and justified to the Board of CFX.  

 
II. Capital Budgeting and Debt Issuance Policy  

 
A. CFX has retained the services of a traffic engineer and a general engineering consultant 

to obtain independent professional advice on the acquisition, construction, operation and 
management of the system, including assistance on the development of a Five-Year 
Work Plan and Twenty-Five Year Master Plan.  The Five-Year Work Plan is typically 
reviewed and updated at least annually.  The Twenty-Five Year Master Plan is typically 
updated every five years.  CFX has developed and will maintain and update, as 
appropriate, a comprehensive Capital Planning Model as a tool in developing a financing 
plan for its Five-Year Work Plan, as well as other additional longer-term capital 
improvements. The Capital Planning Model incorporates the following elements, in 
addition to other factors:  

 
1. System revenue projections from CFX's traffic consultant or alternative revenue 

projection scenarios 
2. Projected Operations, Maintenance and Administration Expenses 
3. Existing debt service requirements  
4. Projected Five-Year Work Plan funding needs together with estimates to 

complete projects beyond the five year scope 
5. Projected timing of the adopted Five-Year Work Plan projects  
6. Estimated additional debt service requirements  
7. Estimated investment income  

 
B. Long-term debt will be used to finance essential capital projects and certain equipment 

where it is cost effective, prudent or otherwise determined to be in the best interest of 
CFX. Long-term debt, which includes capital lease financings, should not be used to 
fund CFX's operations. The useful life of the asset or project financed with long-term 
debt should exceed the payout schedule of any debt issued by CFX to finance such asset.  

 
C. Medium-term or “put” bonds will be used judiciously and only after careful analysis 

and discussion of the interest rate and rollover risks involved. 
 

D. Variable rate debt may be issued in various forms – e.g., bonds, commercial paper, 
bank lines. The amount of unhedged variable rate debt generally should not exceed 



  

  

25% of all outstanding debt of CFX.  As a goal, CFX desires its total hedged and 
unhedged variable rate debt not to exceed 25% of all outstanding long-term debt of CFX.    

 
III. Debt Service Coverage Targets and Limits  

 
A. For CFX to issue new bonds on a parity basis, per the Master Resolution, CFX will need 

to demonstrate that pledged revenues, as defined in the Master Resolution, shall be 
sufficient to cover the existing and new debt service by 1.20x.  

 
B. CFX shall maintain a minimum senior lien debt service coverage ratio of at least 1.45x 

on the existing and planned debt issues.   For planning purposes, staff shall make every 
effort to plan for a 1.60x senior lien debt service coverage ratio. 

 
 

IV. Method of Sale Evaluation  
 
CFX will sell long-term debt on a competitive basis unless, based on the advice of the CFO and 
Financial Advisor, the transaction is better suited for a negotiated sale or direct placement.  

 
A. With the goal of obtaining the lowest cost of capital and completing a successful 

transaction, for each transaction recommended, the CFO, with advice from the 
Financial Advisor, will undertake an analysis to determine the recommended method 
of sale, including competitive, negotiated, or direct placement. 
 

B. The evaluation will take into consideration, among other factors the following 
considerations as outlined in the Government Finance Officers’ Association (GFOA) 
best practice recommendations: 
1. Expected credit rating of bonds being issued 
2. Strength of revenue stream 
3. Structure of bonds and potential need for extensive explanation to the bond 

market 
4. Use of insurance or other credit enhancement 
5. Other factors that staff, in consultation with the financial advisor, believes favor 

the use of one method over the other 
 
C. The evaluation will be shared with the Finance Committee and a recommendation as 

to the method of sale will be presented. 
 

D.   Should CFX select the use of a negotiated sale, the following guidelines will be 
followed to increase the likelihood of a successful transaction and fully documents 
negotiated sale process: 
1. Underwriters will be selected through a formal RFP process under CFX’s 

Procurement Policies. 
2. CFX’s Financial Advisor will advise CFX on all aspects of the sale, including but 

not limited to structuring, disclosure preparation and bond pricing. 
3. Staff and the Financial Advisor will make a recommendation for lead 

underwriting firm and all participating co-senior and co-manager firms based on: 



  

  

a. results of most recent RFP selection, 
b. firm’s contribution to development of strategies for transaction, 
c. demonstrated ability of firm to successfully underwrite similar transaction, 

and/or 
d. previous work assigned to firm under current RFP selection.  

4. The Financial Advisor shall prepare a post-sale summary and analysis that 
documents the following: 
a. pricing of the bonds relative to other similar transactions priced at or near the 

time of CFX' s bond sale, 
b. final cash flows including the true interest cost of the sale and the date of the 

verbal award, and  
c. summary of all orders, allotments and allocation of takedown to the 

underwriting syndicate to monitor compliance with distribution rules 
The analysis shall be shared with the Finance Committee. 

 
   
E. Should a direct placement be recommended, staff and the Financial Advisor shall 

undertake a competitive process for selecting the placement party to ensure CFX’s 
objectives are met at the lowest cost of capital.  Such process may include a formal 
RFP or solicitation of pricing indications, as appropriate. 

 
 

V. Debt Structure  
 

A. In general, CFX will seek to structure long-term debt so that it provides for level annual 
payments of principal and interest over the life of each respective issue (or approximately 
aggregate level debt service for all outstanding debt issues), after a period of interest only 
payments and the use of capitalized interest, as appropriate, for the respective issue in 
order to effectively interface with other existing debt of CFX and within the context of 
the Five-Year Work Plan and other considerations within this Debt Management Policy.  
CFX may utilize various debt structures to accomplish its financing goals, including but 
not limited, to the use of premium bonds, discount bonds, capital appreciation bonds, 
convertible capital appreciation bonds, variable rate and multimodal bonds and 
capitalized interest, when appropriate in order to achieve the goals provided in this Debt 
Management Policy. 

 
B. CFX will consider interest rate swap transactions only as they relate to its debt 

management program and not as an investment instrument.  No swap transaction should 
impair the outstanding uninsured bond rating of CFX. Additionally, no interest rate swap 
transactions will be considered if it causes CFX to exceed the targets in its Interest Rate 
Risk Management Policy.  (For additional details, see CFX’s Interest Rate Risk 
Management Policy.)  

 
 

VI. Call Provisions  
 

A. Call provisions for CFX bond issues shall be made as short as possible consistent with 



  

  

the lowest interest cost to CFX, taking into consideration the option value of such call 
provisions.  

 
B. When practical, all CFX bonds shall be callable only at par.  

 
 

VII. Debt Refunding  
 

CFX staff and the financial advisor shall monitor the municipal bond market for opportunities to 
obtain interest savings by refunding or refinancing outstanding debt. As a general rule, the 
present value savings of a particular refunding should equal or exceed 3% of the refunded 
maturities. For an advance refunding a higher minimum savings threshold should be required, 
depending on how soon the bonds may be called.  However, in order to meet certain restructuring 
or risk management goals, CFX may elect to lower the present value savings threshold for any 
individual transaction.   

 
 

VIII. Credit Enhancement and Liquidity  
 

Bond insurance, surety policies, letters of credit, liquidity facilities and other credit 
enhancements will be used when it provides economic savings or risk management opportunities 
for CFX. Letters of credit, liquidity facilities or other credit facilities may expose CFX to bank 
provider risk.  In those instances, bank providers should possess minimum long term credit 
ratings of “A2/A/A” and minimum short term ratings of “P-1/A-1/F1” from Moody’s Investors 
Services, Standard and Poor’s Corporation and Fitch Ratings, respectively. 

 
IX. Continuing Disclosure  

 
CFX is committed to providing continuing disclosure of financial and pertinent credit 
information relevant to CFX's outstanding securities, and has and will continue to comply with 
those provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15c2-12 concerning 
primary and secondary market disclosure.   CFX has engaged the services of Digital Assurance 
Certification L.L.C. ("DAC") to serve as Disclosure Dissemination Agent. 
Additionally, CFX will maintain financial information on its website to provide timely 
information to the market and public.  Such information will include, but not be limited to, 
comprehensive annual financial reports, monthly cash flow reports, reports on revenue and 
expenses, transactional information, current official traffic and revenue forecasts and current year 
budgets.  It will be noted that monthly financial information will not be audited and will not be 
reported on a full accrual basis, but is available to provide timely information to interested 
parties.  

 
 

X. Credit Objectives  
 

A. It is CFX's intent to maintain and improve the credit ratings on its outstanding and 
proposed bond issues.  CFX will maintain long-term debt ratings from at least two of the 
three major bond rating agencies – Moody’s Investors Service, Standard and Poor’s 



  

  

Corporation, and Fitch Ratings.  CFX may discontinue the use of ratings from any 
agency which currently rates the debt of CFX if, based on advice from CFX’s Financial 
Advisor and underwriting team, the discontinuance of such rating will not adversely 
affect the rates that can be achieved in selling CFX’s debt without such rating.   

 
B. CFX’s CFO will maintain frequent communications with the credit rating agencies that 

currently assign ratings to CFX’s various debt obligations, bank credit providers/lenders, 
and bond insurers that currently enhance any of CFX’s various debt obligations. This 
effort shall include providing periodic updates on CFX’s general financial condition 
along with coordinating meetings and presentations, as necessary, in conjunction with a 
new debt issuance.    

 
C. CFX’s CFO will develop, in conjunction with the Financial Advisor and Disclosure 

Counsel, an investor relations program that will be designed to keep present and future 
investors in CFX’s debt fully informed on current developments related to CFX and its 
long-term debt. 

 
XI. On-going Reporting Requirements 

 
At least twice each year, the Board shall receive a report on the status its debt.  The report 
shall at a minimum include: 

• Amount and percentage of total debt by categories: 
o natural fixed 
o synthetic fixed 
o natural variable 
o synthetic variable 

• Current mark-to-market value of all interest rate exchange agreements 
• Historical rate performance for all variable rate bonds 
• Any changes in ratings for credit enhancers and swap counterparty  

 
CFX’s CFO, with the assistance of the financial advisor, shall be responsible for analyzing 
any unsolicited proposals received relative to debt issues, responding to the proposal as 
appropriate, and recommending to the Finance Committee any action to be taken in a 
timely manner. 

 
XII. Policy Review 

 
This policy shall be reviewed at least every two years. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD ON ____________________________.  
 



D.3
REVIEW OF 
INTEREST 
RATE RISK 

MANAGEMENT 
POLICY 



 

 
 
 

Interest Rate Risk Management Policy 
 
 

The Central Florida Expressway Authority (CFX) currently has a number of interest rate exchange 
agreements (Swaps) with a number of counterparties. As used herein, “Swap” shall mean a “swap,” as 
defined in the Section 1a(47) of the Commodity Exchange Act and the U.S. Commodity Futures 
Trading Commission (“CFTC”) Regulations. This policy will govern how the Swaps, together with 
the associated variable rate demand bonds, will be managed to provide the optimal balance of costs 
and risk.  This policy should be read and interpreted in the context of CFX’s Debt Policy. 
 

I. Goals and Objectives 
 

The overall objective in managing CFX’s debt portfolio and interest rate risk is to balance the cost of 
capital with the management of risk.  CFX’s risk tolerance is low and therefore, opportunities to cost-
effectively reduce existing or potential risks should be constantly evaluated for feasibility.  

 
CFX has set a limit of synthetic fixed rate debt at 25% of the total outstanding debt.  This goal should 
be considered as CFX manages its Swap portfolio and its overall debt program.  New Swaps will only 
be considered where the overall exposure to like transactions is not increased beyond the stated limit.  
New, novated or amended Swaps may also be considered where a reduction in actual or potential risks 
may be accomplished. 

 
It is also CFX’s goal to limit exposure to individual swap dealers/counterparties to no more than 
30% of the total notional amount of CFX’s active Swap portfolio. Although this requirement shall 
not require CFX to terminate, novate or amend existing Swaps absent of other risk considerations, 
it does prohibit new Swaps to be considered if the new Swap would cause CFX’s exposure to any 
individual swap dealer/counterparty to increase beyond 30% of the then existing total notional 
value of CFX’s active Swap portfolio. 
 

II. Monitoring and Reporting of Existing Transactions 
 

As part of the semi-annual debt report provided to the Board (in accordance with CFX’s Debt Policy), 
the CFO will report the current credit ratings of each swap dealer/counterparty with which it has an 
existing Swap and the mark-to-market value of each Swap.  In addition to reporting the weekly rates 
on the variable rate bonds in the semi-annual debt report, the CFO will provide the Finance Committee 
with a quarterly remarketing report and review the results at the next scheduled meeting.  As necessary, 
the CFO, in consultation with CFX’s financial advisors, will make recommendations to address any 
rate dislocation including, but not limited to, changing remarketing agents or credit providers, 
depending on the underlying cause of the dislocation. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



  

  

III. Exit Strategies 
 

The CFO and CFX’s financial advisors and designated “qualified independent representative” 
(“QIR”) (as defined herein) should constantly monitor market rates, termination values, counterparty 
credit ratings, and other relevant factors to determine if voluntary termination is warranted.  Generally, 
a voluntary early termination will be warranted if it is economically advantageous and/or if a reduction 
in CFX’s current or anticipated risk can be accomplished at no cost. CFX shall seek to maintain 
sufficient liquidity, including without limitation through balances in CFX’s Swap/Debt Management 
Contingency, short term financing capacity, and/or other borrowing capacity, to make any Swap 
termination payments that may become due, to the extent not paid or payable from other sources. 
 

IV. Evaluation of Proposed Transactions 
 

While CFX’s current goals would exclude contemplation of new derivative products, the replacement 
of existing Swap transactions with new ones may be the most cost-beneficial method of managing 
risks.  For that reason, this section outlines the process for evaluating and executing new transactions.  

 
 A. Review and Analysis 

 
 The proposed use of structured products must comply with all goals and provisions of CFX’s 

existing policies.  Each Swap transaction will be evaluated as an alternative to traditional, 
intermediate, or long-term financing options. Consideration should be given to their 
comparable cost, ease of entry and exit provisions, and degree of potential risk exposure, 
quantified to the greatest extent possible. Any proposed Swap transaction must fit into CFX's 
goals to limit the percentage of variable rate debt and exposure to individual counterparties. 

 
CFX's designated QIR will provide independent analysis of any proposed Swap transaction, 
including an analysis of the relevant benefits and risks of such transaction. CFX's cost of the 
transaction and any ongoing costs, such as remarketing, credit enhancement and/or liquidity, 
swap advisors, financial advisors, attorney fees and other necessary costs will be included in 
the cost/benefit evaluations. A review of provisions required by bond and/or swap insurance 
providers and the cost/benefit of such insurance will also be included in an evaluation of the 
Swap transaction.  

 
 B. Legal Analysis 

 
 The documentation of the swap shall be in the form of an enforceable written contract.  

Whenever possible, those contracts shall be transacted using Florida law or, as an alternative 
New York law with Florida law as to CFX’s authority and Orange County Florida as to 
jurisdiction or venue.  Review of compliance with existing law and regulation (including but 
not limited to the Internal Revenue Code and CFTC Regulations) bond indentures and bond 
covenants should be completed before implementation of a Swap transaction.  

 
V. Transaction Management and Execution 

 
Swap transactions will: 

 
• Comply with all applicable outstanding bond resolutions, insurance covenants, and Florida 



  

  

law. 
• Contain terms and conditions as set forth in the International Swap and Derivatives 

Association, Inc. ("ISDA") Master Agreement, Schedules to the Master, Credit Support Annex 
and confirmation.  

• Be a market transaction for which competing good faith market quotations may be obtained 
and with the advice and recommendation of CFX's designated QIR, and other financial 
professionals.  

• Include a provision for the right to early termination at market under the guidelines of the ISDA 
Agreement. The transaction should allow for CFX to exercise the right to optionally terminate 
the agreement, at the then prevailing market value of the Swap.  

• Produce material economic or risk management benefit believed to not otherwise be attainable 
under the currently existing market conditions, or existing conventional debt structures, and 
improve the flexibility of debt management strategies.  

• Not introduce leverage solely for the means of producing economic benefit. Transactions will 
not be speculative in nature. 

• Not unduly impair CFX’s utilization of call features on outstanding bonds.  
• Employ structures that will attempt to minimize existing risks and do not substantially add new 

risks, including but not limited to, any additional floating rate basis risk, tax-law risk or credit 
risk to CFX.     

• Not cause the total amount of Swap transactions to exceed the debt management limitations 
for fixed or floating debt. 

 
VI. The Swap Dealer/Counterparty  
 

The following criteria will be used when considering swap dealer/counterparties for a Swap 
transaction:  
 

I. The swap dealer/counterparty must fully disclose all costs.  All fees and expenses paid by 
the swap dealer/counterparty and to designated third parties, will be fully disclosed in 
writing to CFX.  

II. CFX will consider acquiring downgrade protection when possible including collateral 
or credit support. 

III. The assignment of a Swap agreement will not be permitted without the consent of CFX. 
IV. CFX will attempt to utilize domestically domiciled swap dealer/counterparties and/or 

utilize ISDA documentation which employs local currency-single jurisdiction status.  
V. The swap dealer/counterparty shall disclose relationships with other third parties which 

may affect the transaction, such as broker dealers, insurance companies and other swap 
providers.  

VI. The swap dealer/counterparty shall provide its financial statements showing the economic 
capability of the entity, the amount of its swaps outstanding and credit ratings, all of which 
shall be acceptable to CFX. At the time of entering into the Swap transaction, swap 
dealer/counterparties (or their guarantor) shall (i) be rated at least AA-/ Aa3/ AA- by at 
least one of the three nationally recognized credit rating agencies and not be rated lower 
than A/A2/A by any of the three nationally recognized credit rating agencies.  Collateral 
should be required upon a downgrade from these levels. 

 
 



  

  

VII. Authority’s Representations with Respect to Swaps and QIR                                                                          
Solely for purposes of the rules adopted by the CFTC governing business conduct standards 
for swap dealers and other parties as they apply to communications regarding Swaps, the 
Executive Director or CFO may make substantially the following representations in writing 
on behalf of CFX when requested by the swap dealer/counterparty.  
 

1) CFX will not rely on any “recommendation” (as such term is used in CFTC 
Regulations §23.434 and §23.440) provided by a swap dealer/ counterparty with 
respect to a Swap;  
 

2) CFX will rely on advice from a “qualified independent representative” designated by 
CFX and that it has complied in good faith with written policies and procedures 
reasonably designed to ensure that it has designated a “qualified independent 
representative” that satisfies the applicable requirements of CFTC Regulation 
§23.450(b); 
 

3) CFX will exercise independent judgment in evaluating any “recommendations” made 
by the swap dealer/counterparty with regard to a Swap; and 
 

4) CFX understands that the swap dealer/counterparty is not expressing any opinion as 
to whether CFX should enter into or terminate a Swap.  

 
VIII. Use of Qualified Independent Representative  

 
In compliance with the CFTC Regulations promulgated under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street 
Reform and Consumer Protection Act, as amended (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), CFX will 
designate a QIR for all Swap related transactions, including terminations. The QIR must be 
capable of independently evaluating the risks of the Swap, independently evaluating the fair 
pricing of the Swap (including termination payments), and of making timely and effective 
disclosures to CFX (including with regard to material conflicts of interest that could 
reasonably affect the judgment or decision making or the QIR with respect to its obligations 
to CFX). The QIR must represent to CFX that: 
 

A. The QIR has sufficient knowledge and expertise to independently evaluate the Swap, 
the risks of the Swap, the fair pricing of the Swap (including termination payments) 
and the appropriateness of the Swap for CFX (taking into consideration the written 
policies of CFX); 
 

B. The QIR is not subject to a statutory or regulatory disqualification or any final 
disciplinary action that would prevent it from effectively serving as a representative 
to CFX in such capacity.  

 
 

C. The QIR, by accepting such designation by CFX, is undertaking a duty to act in the 
best interests of CFX; 
 



  

  

D. The QIR has written policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that it 
satisfies the applicable requirements of CFTC Regulation §23.450(b)(1); 

 
E. The QIR will exercise independent judgment in evaluating any “recommendations” 

(as such term is used in CFTC Regulations §23.434 and §23.440) presented to it by 
the swap dealer/counterparty with regard to a Swap; 
 

F. The QIR is not and, within one year of representing CFX in connection with the Swap 
has not been, an “associated person,” as such term is defined in Section 1a(4) of the 
Commodity Exchange Act, of the swap dealer/counterparty; 
 

G. There is no “principal relationship” (as that term is defined in CFTC Regulations 
§23.450(a)(1)) between the QIR and the swap dealer/counterparty; 
 

H. The QIR (a) will provide timely and effective disclosures to CFX of all material 
conflicts of interest that could reasonably affect the judgment or decision making of 
the QIR with respect to its obligations to CFX and (b) will comply with policies and 
procedures reasonably designed to manage and mitigate such material conflicts of 
interest; 
 

I. The QIR is not directly or indirectly, through one or more persons, controlled by, in 
control of, or under common control with the swap dealer/counterparty; 
 

J. To the best of the QIR’s knowledge, the swap dealer/counterparty did not refer, 
recommend, or introduce the QIR to CFX within one year of QIR’s representation of 
CFX in connection with the Swap; 
 

K. The QIR is legally obligated to comply with the applicable requirements of CFTC 
Regulation §23.450(b)(1) by agreement, condition of employment, law, rule, 
regulation, or other enforceable duty; and 
 

L. The QIR has registered with the CFTC as a commodity trading advisor and/or with 
the Securities Exchange Commission as an investment advisor under the Investment 
Advisers Act of 1940.  
 

The QIR must also agree to promptly notify CFX in writing if any representations made by the 
QIR referenced above became incorrect or misleading in any material respect. For any 
representation that would be incorrect or misleading in any material respect if repeated on any 
date following the date on which the representation was last repeated, the QIR shall timely 
amend such representation by giving written notice of such amendment to CFX. The designated 
QIR must annually reaffirm in writing to CFX by delivery to the CFO on each July 1st the 
representations outlined in A through L above.  
 
 
The QIR will be retained by CFX through CFX’s implemented procurement procedures (i.e. 
RFP, RFQ, etc.) using selection criteria that ensure the designated QIR possesses the capabilities 



  

  

necessary to independently evaluate the risks of the Swap, to independently evaluate the fair 
pricing of the Swap (including termination payments), and to make timely and appropriate 
disclosures to CFX. The procurement of the QIR may be done in conjunction with CFX’s 
procurement of its financial advisor. If CFX’s financial advisor, or its registered commodity 
trading advisor or investment advisor affiliate, possesses the requisite capabilities and, by written 
contract, makes the representations set forth above, then CFX may designate its financial 
advisor, or its registered investment advisor affiliate, as the QIR.  
 
To ensure compliance with the provisions above, CFX will designate the QIR in writing. The 
QIR must provide evidence of its registration with the CFTC as a commodity trading advisor 
and/or with the Securities Exchange Commission as an investment advisor prior to being 
designated as CFX’s QIR. The designation can be done in the context of the financial advisor 
contract or amendment thereto with the financial advisor or its registered commodity trading 
advisor or investment advisor affiliate, or in a separate contract with a different firm. Prior to 
executing a Swap transaction, termination or novation, CFX will obtain from the designated QIR 
the written representations outlined in A through L above. If the designated QIR is unable to 
provide such representations in a timely manner, CFX may utilize an expedited quote process to 
select a new designated QIR to facilitate a time and market sensitive transaction. The CFO will 
monitor the performance of the designated QIR and that the designated QIR demonstrates on 
each transaction that (1) it has the knowledge and expertise to independently evaluate the Swap, 
the risks of the Swap, the fair pricing of the Swap (including termination payments) and the 
appropriateness of the Swap for CFX, (2) it is independent of the swap dealer/counterparty, (3) it 
is acting in the best interest of CFX and (4) it makes timely and appropriate disclosures to CFX, 
when applicable.  

 
IX. Transaction Pricing 
 

When procuring financial derivative products, every effort shall be made to ensure competitive pricing.  
The complexity of circumstances surrounding transactions and meeting goals to limit exposure to 
individual counterparties may be valid reasons to negotiate a particular derivative product transaction. 
The CFO, upon the advice of the QIR, will make a recommendation to the Finance Committee as to 
the method of pricing and counterparty selection.  The QIR will evaluate prices and rates to ensure 
transactions are at or below market.  Similarly, CFX will make every effort to competitively price swap 
unwind transactions.  The CFO, upon the advice of the QIR will make a recommendation as to the 
method of selecting counterparties for unwinding swaps when not selecting all swaps in a series.  Offers 
from counterparties to unwind transactions below market is an example of a reason to negotiate with 
specific counterparties.  
 

X. Disclosure and Financial Reporting 
 

CFX will ensure that it complies with all regulations and guidelines for the disclosure and financial 
reporting of interest rate swaps as set forth by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) 
and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  
 
 

 
  



  

  

XI. Policy Review 
 

This policy shall be reviewed at least every two years. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD ON ____________________________.  
 



 
D.4 

ANNUAL 
INVESTMENT 

PERFORMANCE 
REVIEW 

 



Investment Advisors

213 Market Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101

717.232.2723 
717.233.6073 fax

PFM Asset Management LLC

300 South Orange Avenue
Suite 1170

Orlando, FL 32801
407.648.2208 

407.648.1323 fax

Investment Performance Review 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Steven Alexander, CTP, CGFO, CPPT, Managing Director
Robert Cheddar, CFA, Chief Credit Officer, Managing Director
D. Scott Stitcher, CFA, Director
Scott Sweeten, BCM, CFS, Client Relationship Manager
Sean Gannon, CTP, Senior Managing Consultant



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Table of Contents

PFM Asset Management LLC

Tab I

Executive Summary

Interest Earnings and Balances as of June 30, 2021

Pooled Funds - Portfolio Statistics

Reserve for Debt Management - Portfolio Statistics

Sinking Funds – Portfolio Statistics

Asset Allocation Chart 

Important Disclosures

Page 2 of 19



Tab I

PFM Asset Management LLC  
Page 3 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Executive Summary

PFM Asset Management LLC

 The Portfolio is of high credit quality and invested in U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, supranational, corporate, municipal,
federal agency, agency MBS pass through, agency CMO, agency CMBS, and ABS securities.

 The General Reserve Portfolio’s quarterly total return performance of 0.11% outperformed its benchmark performance of
-0.03% by 0.14%. For the year, the Portfolio returned 0.60% compared to 0.08% for the benchmark.

 Economic conditions during Q2 were characterized by the following:
o Dramatically lower COVID-19 caseload as vaccine inoculations ramped up, balanced with waning vaccine demand

and the emergence of more infectious variants,
o Strong consumer-oriented economic data supported by ongoing fiscal stimulus measures,
o Elevated inflation figures fueled by surging economic activity amid labor and supply chain shortages,
o A late-quarter hawkish pivot from the Federal Reserve, as anticipation of bond purchase tapering gained traction

and the timeline for expected rate hikes was pulled forward, and
o The largest increase in bottom-up corporate earnings estimates in nearly 20 years which propelled major U.S. stock

indexes to new all-time highs.

 The U.S. Treasury yield curve flattened modestly over the quarter as longer-term yields retraced some of their significant
moves higher in Q1. Shorter-term maturities inched higher off rock-bottom lows. Nevertheless, short-term rates (maturities
less than two years) remain near historically low levels. Despite the decline in yields on longer-term maturities (greater than
seven years) of 10 to 20 basis points (0.10% to 0.20%) over the quarter, the curve remains relatively steep.

o As a result, short-term U.S. Treasury index returns were flat to slightly negative for the quarter, while longer-duration
indices posted strong, positive returns on the flatter yield curve.

 The strong U.S. economic expansion is expected to persist, aided by vaccine-driven reopening, pent-up consumer demand,
and continued fiscal and monetary support. 2021 GDP expectations have been revised upward, with current forecasts
pointing to an annualized 6% growth this year. Despite these projections, growing inflationary pressures may force the
Federal Reserve’s hand when considering tapering its bond purchases and, ultimately, future rate increases. Given balanced
risks, we plan to maintain portfolio durations in-line with respective benchmarks as we continue to monitor the economic
recovery.

 Diversification across permitted investments will remain a key element of our strategy, with a continued focus on income as
a key driver of return.

 
Page 4 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Annual Investment Report - Fiscal year Ended June 30, 2021

Interest Earnings and Balances as of June 30, 2021¹

Interest Earnings Interest Earnings Difference 
Account Name June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 Fiscal Year 2021 vs. 2020

Pooled Investments $593,522.81 $771,209.36 ($177,686.55)
General Reserve 3,724,879.15 4,874,675.97 (1,149,796.82)
2018 Construction Funds - 304,651.34 (304,651.34)
2019 Construction Funds 4,938,178.37 2,416,844.99 2,521,333.38
Cash and Short Term Investments 247,705.92 2,449,701.52 (2,201,995.60)
Sinking Funds 2,359,273.67 4,086,280.56 (1,727,006.89)
All Accounts $11,863,559.92 $14,903,363.74 ($3,039,803.82)

Notes:

1. Interest earnings information provided by the Authority's staff.

2. Includes Florida PRIME ("SBA") LGIP,  TD Bank Checking Account, Morgan Stanley and Urban Trust CD balances.

3. Average Amortized Cost balance for the fiscal year.

PFM Asset Management LLC

Pooled Investments
7.8%

General Reserve
14.7%

2019 Construction 
Funds
24.6%

Cash and Short Term 
Investments

28.9%

Sinking Funds
24.0%

Balances as of June 30, 2021

Pooled 
Investments

8.1%

General 
Reserve
14.7%

2019 
Construction 

Funds
39.4%

Cash and 
Short Term 
Investments

14.5%

Sinking Funds
23.3%

Balances as of June 30, 2020

 
Page 5 of 19



For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Pooled Funds Statistics

Amortized Cost1,2,3 Amortized Cost1,2,3 Market Value1,2,3 Market Value1,2,3 Duration (Years)
Account Name June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

Cash & Short Term Investments $321,104,620 $163,453,742 $321,104,620 $163,453,742 0.003 
Pooled Investments 86,996,224 92,453,974 87,057,519 92,483,433 0.560 
Total $408,100,844 $255,907,716 $408,162,139 $255,937,175 0.122

Yield to Maturity Yield to Maturity Yield to Maturity Yield to Maturity
at Cost4 at Cost4 at Market at Market Duration (Years)

Account Name June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020

Cash & Short Term Investments 0.02% 0.46% 0.02% 0.46% 0.003 
Pooled Investments 0.23% 1.00% 0.12% 0.30% 0.560 
Total 0.06% 0.66% 0.04% 0.40% 0.204

Benchmarks June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020

0.06% 0.33%

Notes:

1.  On a trade-date basis, includes accrued interest and money market fund/cash if tracked by PFM.
2.  Includes any money market fund/cash balances held in custodian account.
3.  In order to comply with GASB accrual accounting reporting requirements;  forward settling trades are included in the monthly balance.
4.  Past performance is not indicative of future results.
5.  Month end yields, source Bloomberg. The presentation of this benchmark is pursuant to the Investment Policy.

PFM Asset Management LLC

S&P Rated GIP Index Gov't 30 Day 
Gross Yield Index5

 
Page 6 of 19



CFX- GENERAL RESERVE

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Portfolio Snapshot

Portfolio Statistics

As of June 30, 2021

$160,707,416 

$163,827,507 

$162,357,234 

$297,149 

$1,173,124 

   Accrued Interest:

Cash:

Par Value:

Total Market Value:

   Security Market Value:

$161,458,937 

 0.60%

 0.91%

AAAverage Credit: *

Yield at Cost:

Amortized Cost:

Yield at Market:

Effective Duration: 1.90 Years

Average Maturity: 2.54 Years

Credit Quality (S&P Ratings)

4.8%

A

7.2%

A-

7.2%

A+

1.5%

AA

1.4%

AA-

50.2%

AA+

17.9%

AAA

4.5%

BBB+

5.3%

Not Rated

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

0 - 1 Year 1 - 2 Years 2 - 3 Years 3 - 4 Years 4 - 5 Years > 5 Years

3.7%

38.4% 38.6%

11.5%

3.1%
4.7%

Maturity Distribution

Sector Allocation

14.8%

ABS

5.4%

Agency

CMBS

0.6%

Agency

CMO

3.5%

Agency

MBS Pass

Through

25.9%

Corporate

18.6%

Federal

Agency

6.3%

Municipal

5.1%

Supranational

19.8%

U.S.

Treasury

 PFM Asset Management LLC

* An average of each security’s credit rating assigned a numeric value and adjusted for its relative weighting in the portfolio.

 
Page 7 of 19



CFX- GENERAL RESERVE

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Portfolio Performance

Portfolio Performance (Total Return)

Effective

DurationPortfolio/Benchmark

Annualized Return

10 Year1 Year 3 Year 5 Year
Since Inception

(06/30/06) **

Current

Quarter

CFX- GENERAL RESERVE  1.90  0.11% 1.49%0.60% 3.09% 2.03% 2.41%

ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury/Agency Index  1.83 -0.03% 1.21%0.08% 2.68% 1.60% 2.21%

Difference 0.52% 0.14% 0.41% 0.43% 0.28% 0.20%

-0.5%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

3.0%

3.5%

 Current Quarter  1 Year  3 Year  5 Year  10 Year  Since Inception

0.11%

0.60%

3.09%

2.03%

1.49%

2.41%

-0.03%

0.08%

2.68%

1.60%

1.21%

2.21%

T
o

ta
l 
R

e
tu

rn

CFX- GENERAL RESERVE ICE BofAML 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury/Agency Index

 PFM Asset Management LLC

Portfolio performance is gross of fees unless otherwise indicated.  **Since Inception performance is not shown for periods less than one year.

 
Page 8 of 19



Investment Report - Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Reserved for Debt Service - Portfolio Statistics

Amortized Cost1,2,3 Amortized Cost1,2,3 Market Value1,2,3 Market Value1,2,3 Duration (Years)
Account Name June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021

2008B-1 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 907,880 - 907,880 0.003 
2008B-2 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 850,178 - 850,178 0.003 
2008B-3 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 1,151,691 - 1,151,691 0.003 
2008B-4 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 717,548 - 717,548 0.003 
2010B Sinking Fund - Interest - 8,413,795 - 8,413,795 -
2010C Sinking Fund - Interest - 810,031 - 810,031 -
2012 Sinking Fund - Interest 875,412 28,040,275 875,412 28,040,275 0.003 
2012A Subordinate - Interest 5,421,513 7,073,187 5,421,513 7,073,187 0.003 
2013A Sinking Fund - Interest 6,116,888 6,115,688 6,116,888 6,115,688 0.003 
2013B Sinking Fund - Interest 3,819,655 23,698,278 3,819,655 23,698,278 0.003 
2013C Sinking Fund - Interest - 2,441,163 - 2,441,163 -
2016 A Sinking Funds - Interest 3,883,863 3,855,087 3,883,863 3,855,087 0.003 
2016 B Sinking Funds - Interest 15,413,863 15,375,584 15,413,863 15,375,584 0.003 
2017 Sinking Funds - Interest 8,283,985 8,269,301 8,283,985 8,269,301 0.003 
2018 Sinking Fund - Interest 9,168,311 9,080,306 9,168,311 9,080,306 0.003 
2019 A&B Sinking Fund - Interest 22,874,868 - 22,874,868 - 0.003 
2020 Sinking Fund - Interest 57,658,373 - 57,658,373 - 0.003 
Debt Service Reserve - 2010A - 13,458,724 - 13,678,097 -
Debt Service Reserve - 2010C - 1,460,894 - 1,480,828 -
Debt Service Reserve - 2016B 48,757,167 47,751,579 48,986,134 48,926,014 1.430 
Debt Service Reserve - TIFIA 11,127,606 10,980,260 11,168,955 11,153,224 1.010 
Debt Service Reserve - Common 15,181,978 15,034,942 15,172,047 15,139,574 1.940 
Debt Service Reserve - 2019 Common 37,708,931 36,822,639 37,709,603 37,553,887 1.830 
Total $246,292,412 $242,309,030 $246,553,469 $244,731,616 0.730 

PFM Asset Management LLC  
Page 9 of 19



Investment Report - Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Reserved for Debt Service - Portfolio Statistics

Yield to Maturity Yield to Maturity Yield to Maturity Yield to Maturity
at Cost4 at Cost4 at Market at Market Duration (Years)

Account Name June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 June 30, 2020

2008B-1 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 0.06% - 0.06% 0.003 
2008B-2 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 0.06% - 0.06% 0.003 
2008B-3 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 0.06% - 0.06% 0.003 
2008B-4 Sinking Fund -  Interest6 - 0.06% - 0.06% 0.003 
2010B Sinking Fund - Interest - 0.06% - 0.06% 0.003 
2010C Sinking Fund - Interest - 0.06% - 0.06% 0.003 
2012 Sinking Fund - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2012A Subordinate - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2013A Sinking Fund - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2013B Sinking Fund - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2013C Sinking Fund - Interest - 0.06% - 0.06% 0.003 
2016 A Sinking Funds - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2016 B Sinking Funds - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2017 Sinking Funds - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2018 Sinking Fund - Interest 0.01% 0.06% 0.01% 0.06% 0.003 
2019 A&B Sinking Fund - Interest 0.01% - 0.01% - -
2020 Sinking Fund - Interest 0.01% - 0.01% - -
Debt Service Reserve - 2010A - 1.82% - 0.24% 1.540 
Debt Service Reserve - 2010C - 1.76% - 0.17% 1.480 
Debt Service Reserve - 2016B 0.89% 1.89% 0.23% 0.17% 1.520 
Debt Service Reserve - TIFIA 0.93% 1.81% 0.12% 0.18% 1.010 
Debt Service Reserve - Common 0.28% 1.61% 0.28% 0.19% 0.680 
Debt Service Reserve - 2019 Common 0.31% 1.46% 0.27% 0.18% 1.690 
Total 0.29% 0.92% 0.12% 0.12% 0.740 

Benchmarks June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
S&P Rated GIP Index Gov't 30 Day Gross Yield Index5 0.06% 0.33%

Notes:

1.  On a trade-date basis, includes accrued interest and money market fund/cash if tracked by PFM.

2.  Includes any money market fund/cash balances held in custodian account.

3.  In order to comply with GASB accrual accounting reporting requirements;  forward settling trades are included in the monthly balance.

4.  Past performance is not indicative of future results.

5.  Month end yields, source Bloomberg. The presentation of this benchmark is pursuant to the Investment Policy.

6.  Due to the liquidity requirements of these portfolios, the balances are invested in a money market mutual fund held in the custody accounts.

PFM Asset Management LLC  
Page 10 of 19



For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Asset Allocation

Security Type
Amortized Cost 

(Includes Interest)
Allocation 

Percentage
Permitted by 

Policy In Compliance
Asset-Backed Securities 23,884,320.87 2.69% 25% Yes
Bankers’ Acceptances - - 10% Yes
Certificates of Deposit and Savings Accounts - - 50% Yes
Commercial Paper 114,842,985.05 12.95% 50% Yes
Corporate Notes 42,692,243.19 4.82% 50% Yes
Demand Deposit Bank Accounts 20,000,000.00 2.26% 75% Yes
Federal Agency 83,613,389.95 9.43% 75% Yes
Florida Prime (SBA) - - 25% Yes
Intergovernmental Pools 126,909,829.88 14.32% 50% Yes
Federal Agency MBS/CMO 15,178,325.28 1.71% 25% Yes
Money Market Funds 310,753,101.23 35.05% 50% Yes
Municipals 10,235,842.16 1.15% 25% Yes
Fixed-Income Mutual Funds and ETFs - - 25% Yes
Repurchase Agreements - - 40% Yes
Supranationals 19,584,812.10 2.21% 25% Yes
United States Treasury Securities 118,795,497.99 13.40% 100% Yes
Total 886,490,347.70 100.00%
End of month trade-date amortized cost of portfolio holdings, including accrued interest.

13.40%

2.21%

1.15%

35.05%

14.32%

1.71%

9.43%

2.26%

4.82%

12.95%

2.69%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

United States Treasury Securities

Supranationals

Municipals

Money Market Funds

Intergovernmental Pools

Federal Agency MBS/CMO

Federal Agency

Demand Deposit Bank Accounts

Corporate Notes

Commercial Paper

Asset-Backed Securities

PFM Asset Management LLC
 

Page 11 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Asset Allocation

Sector Individual Issuer Breakdown
Amortized Cost

(Includes Interest)
Allocation

Percentage
Permitted by 

Policy
In

Compliance
ASSET-BACKED CNH EQUIPMENT TRUST 1,246,479.75 0.14% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED FIFTH THIRD AUTO TRUST 383,235.25 0.04% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED FORD CREDIT AUTO OWNER TRUST 612,809.66 0.07% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED GM FINANCIAL AUTO LEASING TRUST 1,621,307.88 0.18% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED GM FINANCIAL SECURITIZED TERM 1,726,576.99 0.19% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED HARLEY-DAVIDSON MOTORCYCLE TRUST 829,000.29 0.09% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED HONDA AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER T 710,009.94 0.08% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED HYUNDAI AUTO RECEIVABLES TRUST 891,360.07 0.10% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED NISSAN AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER 465,104.09 0.05% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED TOYOTA AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER 2,389,154.34 0.27% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED WORLD OMNI AUTO RECEIVABLES TR 1,575,852.35 0.18% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED BMW VEHICLE LEASE TRUST 295,005.92 0.03% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST 2,634,870.84 0.30% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED JOHN DEERE OWNER TRUST 1,536,791.65 0.17% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED MERCEDES-BENZ AUTO RECEIVABLES 206,270.89 0.02% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED BANK OF AMERICA CREDIT CARD TR 155,027.70 0.02% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED NISSAN AUTO LEASE TRUST 523,136.23 0.06% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED MERCEDES-BENZ AUTO LEASE TRUST 155,021.62 0.02% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED VOLKSWAGEN AUTO LOAN ENHANCED 405,779.81 0.05% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED DISCOVER CARD EXECUTION NOTE TRUST 830,578.87 0.09% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED VERIZON OWNER TRUST 2,060,596.37 0.23% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED BMW VEHICLE OWNER TRUST 345,007.40 0.04% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED HYUNDAI AUTO LEASE SECURITIZATION TRUST 850,002.31 0.10% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED KUBOTA CREDIT OWNER TRUST 270,021.88 0.03% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED TOYOTA LEASE OWNER TRUST 430,004.31 0.05% 5% Yes
ASSET-BACKED VERIZON MASTER TRUST 735,314.46 0.08% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE APPLE INC 555,535.96 0.06% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE BRANCH BANKING & TRUST 1,006,055.65 0.11% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE CITIGROUP INC 844,246.02 0.10% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC 1,110,977.93 0.13% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE MORGAN STANLEY 1,143,406.76 0.13% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 1,051,736.11 0.12% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE WELLS FARGO BANK NA 1,242,892.25 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP 885,498.35 0.10% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE INTEL CORP 839,413.03 0.09% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE IBM CORP 999,260.83 0.11% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 1,590,316.69 0.18% 5% Yes

PFM Asset Management LLC

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 
Page 12 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Asset Allocation

Sector Individual Issuer Breakdown
Amortized Cost

(Includes Interest)
Allocation

Percentage
Permitted by 

Policy
In

Compliance
CORPORATE NOTE CHARLES SCHWAB CORP 505,855.34 0.06% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE BANK OF AMERICA CORP 1,235,921.99 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE 3M COMPANY 1,159,362.32 0.13% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE CISCO SYSTEMS 772,342.06 0.09% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE PACCAR FINANCIAL CORP 772,260.19 0.09% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE CATERPILLAR FINANCIAL SERVICES CORP 1,210,232.78 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE AMAZON.COM INC 1,628,657.96 0.18% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE MERCK & CO INC 408,238.58 0.05% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL 407,115.26 0.05% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA HOUSTON 1,944,139.63 0.22% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE BANK OF MONTREAL CHICAGO 659,841.07 0.07% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE GENERAL DYNAMICS CORP 913,459.93 0.10% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE PEPSICO INC 406,239.70 0.05% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE TORONTO DOMINION BANK 2,176,379.38 0.25% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE MITSUBISHI UFJ FIN GRP 1,267,513.07 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE ROYAL BANK OF CANADA NY 806,519.00 0.09% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE BANK OF NY MELLON CORP 410,622.47 0.05% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE CANADIAN IMP BK COMM NY 1,224,778.03 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE COMCAST CORP 580,496.60 0.07% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE GLAXOSMITHKLINE CAPITAL 235,313.73 0.03% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE HSBC BANK USA NA 385,386.20 0.04% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 544,805.23 0.06% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE WESTPAC BANKING CORP NY 691,091.22 0.08% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE COOPERATIEVE RABOBANK U.A. 1,231,448.37 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE CREDIT SUISSE NEW YORK 1,212,478.99 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE SUMITOMO MITSUI TRUST NY 1,217,068.06 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE SVENSKA HANDELSBANKEN NY 889,599.15 0.10% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE BRISTOL-MYERS SQUIBB CO 530,379.48 0.06% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE NATIONAL BANK OF CANADA 859,555.82 0.10% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE SIEMENS FINANCIERINGSMAT 355,628.58 0.04% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE SUMITOMO MITSUI BANK NY 1,132,694.80 0.13% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE SWEDBANK (NEW YORK) 1,197,268.67 0.14% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE ASTRAZENECA FINANCE LLC 845,468.52 0.10% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE NORDEA BANK AB NEW YORK 715,376.46 0.08% 5% Yes
CORPORATE NOTE UBS AG STAMFORD CT 889,364.97 0.10% 5% Yes
MBS / CMO FANNIE MAE 3,190,849.46 0.36% 40% Yes
MBS / CMO FHLMC MULTIFAMILY STRUCTURED P 6,818,931.50 0.77% 40% Yes
MBS / CMO FREDDIE MAC 3,378,118.61 0.38% 40% Yes
MBS / CMO FANNIEMAE-ACES 1,500,889.52 0.17% 40% Yes
MBS / CMO GINNIE MAE 289,536.19 0.03% 40% Yes

PFM Asset Management LLC

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 
Page 13 of 19



For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2021
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Asset Allocation

Sector Individual Issuer Breakdown
Amortized Cost

(Includes Interest)
Allocation

Percentage
Permitted by 

Policy
In

Compliance
US TSY BOND/NOTE UNITED STATES TREASURY 118,795,497.99 13.40% 100% Yes
SUPRANATL INTL BANK OF RECONSTRUCTION AND DEV 13,545,490.55 1.53% 5% Yes
SUPRANATL INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 1,265,385.51 0.14% 5% Yes
SUPRANATL ASIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 4,773,936.04 0.54% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE NEW YORK ST DORM AUTH ST PERSO 1,256,634.15 0.14% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE MISSISSIPPI ST 395,277.82 0.04% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE ARIZONA STATE TRANSPORTATION BOARD 696,151.35 0.08% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE CONNECTICUT ST 86,385.54 0.01% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE MARYLAND ST 856,460.63 0.10% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE PRINCE GEORGES CNTY MD 240,426.12 0.03% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE WASHINGTON ST 625,989.58 0.07% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE TAMPA WTR & WSTWTR SYS, FL TXBL REV BNDS 110,137.50 0.01% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY/NJ 982,297.08 0.11% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE MINNESOTA ST 1,022,265.31 0.12% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE FLORIDA ST BRD OF ADMIN FIN CO 422,641.80 0.05% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE NEW YORK ST URBAN DEV CORP REV 2,334,215.65 0.26% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE AVONDALE SCHOOL DISTRICT 421,155.00 0.05% 5% Yes
MUNI BOND/NOTE TEXAS ST TRANSPRTN COMMISSIONS 785,804.63 0.09% 5% Yes
FED AGY BOND/NOTE FANNIE MAE 30,955,748.53 3.49% 40% Yes
FED AGY BOND/NOTE FREDDIE MAC 48,920,129.70 5.52% 40% Yes
FED AGY BOND/NOTE FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK 3,737,511.72 0.42% 40% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER TORONTO DOMINION BANK 8,996,008.34 1.01% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER ING (US) FUNDING LLC 13,081,761.63 1.48% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER CREDIT AGRICOLE CIB NY 6,299,680.33 0.71% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER EXXON MOBIL CORPORATION 8,997,685.56 1.01% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER NATIXIS NY BRANCH 18,789,760.96 2.12% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER CREDIT SUISSE NEW YORK 3,496,507.64 0.39% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER MIZUHO BANK LTD/NY 2,499,566.67 0.28% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER SOCIETE GENERALE NY 1,098,819.33 0.12% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER LMA AMERICAS LLC 3,497,571.50 0.39% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER MACQUARIE BANK LIMITED 3,497,906.83 0.39% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER BARCLAYS BANK PLC CCP 3,498,726.77 0.39% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER SANTANDER UK PLC 10,038,393.60 1.13% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER NATIONAL BANK OF CANADA 449,663.63 0.05% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER COLLAT COMM PAPER V CO 15,342,697.59 1.73% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER AUST & NZ BANKING GROUP 14,808,633.67 1.67% 5% Yes
COMMERCIAL PAPER SKANDINAVISKA ENSKILDA BANKEN AB 449,601.00 0.05% 5% Yes
DEMAND DEPOSIT BANK ACCOUNT WELLS FARGO DEPOSITORY ACCOUNT - QPD 20,000,000.00 2.26% 50% Yes
MNY MKT/MUTUAL FND WELLS FARGO GOVERNMENT ADVANTAGE 224,433,310.32 25.32% 25% No*
MNY MKT/MUTUAL FND CASH BALANCE 86,319,790.91 9.74% 25% Yes

PFM Asset Management LLC

*This was a result of a temporary timing issue between maturities and the need to keep cash liquid for the advanced cash refunding on 7/1/21.

 
Page 14 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY Asset Allocation

Sector Individual Issuer Breakdown
Amortized Cost

(Includes Interest)
Allocation

Percentage
Permitted by 

Policy
In

Compliance
INTERGOVERNMENTAL POOLS FL PALM 126,909,829.88 14.32% 25% Yes
Total 886,490,347.70 100.00%
End of month trade-date amortized cost of portfolio holdings, including accrued interest.

PFM Asset Management LLC

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

 
Page 15 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Appendix

IMPORTANT DISCLOSURES

This material is based on information obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable and available to the public; however, PFM Asset Management LLC cannot 

guarantee its accuracy, completeness or suitability. This material is for general information purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or a specific 

recommendation. All statements as to what will or may happen under certain circumstances are based on assumptions, some, but not all of which, are noted in the 

presentation. Assumptions may or may not be proven correct as actual events occur, and results may depend on events outside of your or our control. Changes in 

assumptions may have a material effect on results. Past performance does not necessarily reflect and is not a guaranty of future results. The information contained in 

this presentation is not an offer to purchase or sell any securities.

Dime

Ã Market values that include accrued interest are derived from closing bid prices as of the last business day of the month as supplied by Refinitiv, Bloomberg,  

     or Telerate. Where prices are not available from generally recognized sources, the securities are priced using a yield based matrix system to arrive at an estimated 

     market value.  

Ã In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, information is presented on a trade date basis; forward settling purchases are included in the monthly  

     balances, and forward settling sales are excluded.

Ã Performance is presented in accordance with the CFA Institute ’s Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS). Unless otherwise noted, performance is shown 

     gross of fees. Quarterly returns are presented on an unannualized basis. Returns for periods greater than one year are presented on an annualized basis. Past 

     performance is not indicative of future returns.

Ã Bank of America/Merrill Lynch Indices provided by Bloomberg Financial Markets.

Ã Money market fund/cash balances are included in performance and duration computations.

Ã Standard & Poorʼs is the source of the credit ratings. Distribution of credit rating is exclusive of money market fund/LGIP holdings.

Ã Callable securities in the portfolio are included in the maturity distribution analysis to their stated maturity date, although, they may be called prior to maturity.

Ã MBS maturities are represented by expected average life.

 PFM Asset Management LLC
 

Page 16 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Appendix

  GLOSSARY

Ã ACCRUED INTEREST: Interest that is due on a bond or other fixed income security since the last interest payment was made.

Ã AGENCIES: Federal agency securities and/or Government-sponsored enterprises.

Ã AMORTIZED COST: The original cost of the principal of the security is adjusted for the amount of the periodic reduction of any discount or premium from the purchase 

     date until the date of the report. Discount or premium with respect to short-term securities (those with less than one year to maturity at time of issuance) is amortized 

     on a straight line basis. Such discount or premium with respect to longer-term securities is amortized using the constant yield basis.

Ã BANKERS’ ACCEPTANCE: A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust company. The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill as well as the 

     insurer.

Ã COMMERCIAL PAPER: An unsecured obligation issued by a corporation or bank to finance its short-term credit needs, such as accounts receivable and inventory.

Ã CONTRIBUTION TO DURATION: Represents each sector or maturity range ’s relative contribution to the overall duration of the portfolio measured as a percentage

     weighting. Since duration is a key measure of interest rate sensitivity, the contribution to duration measures the relative amount or contribution of that sector or 

     maturity range to the total rate sensitivity of the portfolio.  

Ã EFFECTIVE DURATION: A measure of the sensitivity of a security’s price to a change in interest rates, stated in years.

Ã EFFECTIVE YIELD: The total yield an investor receives in relation to the nominal yield or coupon of a bond. Effective yield takes into account the power of compounding 

     on investment returns, while nominal yield does not.

Ã FDIC: Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. A federal agency that insures bank deposits to a specified amount.

Ã INTEREST RATE: Interest per year divided by principal amount and expressed as a percentage.

Ã MARKET VALUE: The value that would be received or paid for an investment in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Ã MATURITY: The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and payable.

Ã NEGOTIABLE CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT: A CD with a very large denomination, usually $1 million or more, that can be traded in secondary markets.

Ã PAR VALUE: The nominal dollar face amount of a security.

Ã PASS THROUGH SECURITY: A security representing pooled debt obligations that passes income from debtors to its shareholders. The most common type is the 

     mortgage-backed security.

 PFM Asset Management LLC
 

Page 17 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Appendix

  GLOSSARY

Ã REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS: A holder of securities sells these securities to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date.

Ã SETTLE DATE: The date on which the transaction is settled and monies/securities are exchanged. If the settle date of the transaction (i.e., coupon payments and 

     maturity proceeds) occurs on a non-business day, the funds are exchanged on the next business day.

Ã TRADE DATE: The date on which the transaction occurred; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

Ã UNSETTLED TRADE: A trade which has been executed; however, the final consummation of the security transaction and payment has not yet taken place.

Ã U.S. TREASURY: The department of the U.S. government that issues Treasury securities.

Ã YIELD: The rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period remaining until maturity, stated as a 

     percentage on an annualized basis.

Ã YTM AT COST: The yield to maturity at cost is the expected rate of return based on the original cost, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time period from 

     purchase date to maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.

Ã YTM AT MARKET: The yield to maturity at market is the rate of return based on the current market value, the annual interest receipts, maturity value, and the time 

     period remaining until maturity, stated as a percentage on an annualized basis.

 PFM Asset Management LLC
 

Page 18 of 19



CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

PFM Asset Management LLC

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Market Update

Important Disclosures

PFM is the marketing name for a group of affiliated companies providing a range of services. All services are provided  through separate agreements 
with each company. This material is for general information purposes only and is not  intended to provide specific advice or a specific 
recommendation. Investment advisory services are provided by PFM  Asset Management LLC which is registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) under the Investment  Advisers Act of 1940. Financial advisory services are provided by PFM Financial Advisors LLC and Public 
Financial  Management, Inc. Both are registered municipal advisors with the SEC and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board  (MSRB) under the 
Dodd-Frank Act of 2010. Swap advisory services are provided by PFM Swap Advisors LLC which is  registered as a municipal advisor with both the 
MSRB and SEC under the Dodd-Frank Act of 2010, and as a commodity  trading advisor with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission. 
Additional applicable regulatory information is available  upon request. Consulting services are provided through PFM Group Consulting LLC. 
Institutional purchasing card  services are provided through PFM Financial Services LLC. PFM’s financial modeling platform for strategic forecasting 
is  provided through PFM Solutions LLC. For more information regarding PFM’s services or entities, please visit www.pfm.com.

The views expressed within this material constitute the perspective and judgment of PFM at the time of distribution and  are subject to change. Any 
forecast, projection, or prediction of the market, the economy, economic trends, and equity or  fixed-income markets are based upon current opinion 
as of the date of issue and are also subject to change. Opinions  and data presented are not necessarily indicative of future events or expected 
performance. Information contained herein  is based on data obtained from recognized statistical services, issuer reports or communications, or 
other sources,  believed to be reliable. No representation is made as to its accuracy or completeness.

 
Page 19 of 19

http://www.pfm.com/


 
D.5 

REVIEW OF 
INVESTMENT 

POLICY 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

Of 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approved:  
 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 2 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 Page 
 
I. PURPOSE 3 
 
II. SCOPE 3 
 
III. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 3 
 
IV. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 4 
 
V. STANDARDS OF PRUDENCE 4 
 
VI. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 5 
 
VII. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND INVESTMENT PROCEDURES 5 
 
VIII. CONTINUING EDUCATION 6 
 
IX. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 6 
 
X. MATURITY AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS 6 
 
XI. RISK AND DIVERSIFICATION 6 
 
XII. MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT 76 
 
XIII. DERIVATIVES AND REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 7 
 
XIV. COMPETITIVE SELECTION OF INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS 7 
 
XV. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS AND PORTFOLIO COMPOSTION 8 
 
XVI. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 12 
 
XVII. REPORTING 12 
 
XVIII. THIRD-PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENTS 132 
 
XIX. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 13 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A:  Glossary of Cash and Investment Management Terms 
ATTACHMENT B:  Investment Pool/Fund Questionnaire 

  



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 3 

 
CENTRAL FLORIDA EXPRESSWAY  

AUTHORITY 
INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
 
I. PURPOSE 

 
The purpose of this Investment Policy (hereinafter “Policy”) is to set forth the investment objectives and 
parameters for the management of public funds of the Central Florida Expressway Authority (hereinafter 
“CFX”).  These policies are designed to ensure the prudent management of public funds by CFX, the 
availability of operating and capital funds when needed by CFX and an investment return for CFX 
competitive with comparable funds and financial market indices. 

 
 
II. SCOPE 
 

In accordance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, this Policy applies to all cash and investments held 
or controlled by CFX and shall be identified as operating funds, reserve funds or bond funds of CFX (the 
“Portfolio”).  In connection with the investment of proceeds of bonds issued by CFX, CFX’s master bond 
resolution permitted investments are included in the authorized investments in Section XV of this Policy.   

 
 
III. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES  
 
 

A. Safety of Principal   
The foremost objective of CFX’s investment program is the safety of the principal of those funds 
within the Portfolio.  Investment transactions shall seek to be consistent with the other investment 
objectives, which are to keep capital losses at a minimum, whether they are from securities defaults 
or erosion of market value. To attain this objective, CFX will maintain a diversified portfolio so that 
potential losses on individual securities do not exceed the income generated from the remainder of 
the portfolio.  
 

B. Maintenance of Liquidity   
The Portfolio shall be managed in such a manner that funds are available to meet reasonably anticipated 
cash flow requirements of CFX in an orderly manner.  Periodic cash flow analyses will be completed 
in order to ensure that the Portfolio is positioned to provide sufficient liquidity. 
 

C. Return on Investment   
The Portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout 
budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk constraints and liquidity needs.  
Return on investment is of least importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described 
above.  However, return is attempted through active management where the Investment Manager 
utilizes a total return strategy (which includes both realized and unrealized gains and losses in the 
Portfolio).  This total return strategy seeks to increase the value of the Portfolio through reinvestment 
of income and capital gains. The core of investments is limited to relatively low risk securities in 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 4 

anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being assumed. Despite this, an Investment 
Manager may trade to recognize a loss from time to time to achieve a perceived relative value based 
on its potential to enhance the total return of the Portfolio. 

 
  



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 5 

IV. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 
 

In accordance with CFX’s administrative policies, the responsibility for providing oversight and direction 
in regard to the management of the investment program and the Portfolio resides with CFX’s Finance 
Committee.  The Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of CFX have the ultimate authority and 
responsibility for the investment program and the management of the Portfolio.  The management 
responsibility for all Authority funds in the Portfolio and investment transactions is delegated to CFX’s 
Chief Financial Officer and Authorized Staff members.  The Chief Financial Officer shall account for all 
Authority funds in the Portfolio.  The Chief Financial Officer shall establish written procedures for the 
operation of the investment portfolio and a system of internal accounting and administrative controls to 
regulate the activities of employees.  CFX may employ an investment manager (an “Investment Manager”), 
to assist in managing the Portfolios.  Such Investment Manager must be registered under the Investment 
Advisers Act of 1940.  The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for monitoring and regulating the 
activities of Authorized Staff and the Investment Manager involved with the investment program.  The 
Authorized Staff is limited to the following positions: 
 

 Chief Financial Officer 
 Director of Accounting and Finance 
 Manager of Finance and AccountingAccounting and Finance 

 Assistant Manager of Finance and Accounting 
 
 

V. STANDARDS OF PRUDENCE 
 

The standard of prudence to be used by the Authorized Staff shall be the “Prudent Person” standard and 
shall be applied in the context of managing the Portfolio.  Authorized Staff acting in accordance with written 
procedures and this Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an 
individual security’s credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations from expectation are reported 
in a timely fashion to the Executive Director and Finance Committee and that the securities involved are 
liquidated or sold accordance with the terms of this policy.  The “Prudent Person” rule states the following: 
 

“Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, 
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their 
own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their 
capital as well as the probable income to be derived from the investment.” 218.415(4) F.S. 

 
While the standard of prudence to be used by Authorized Staff who are officers or employees is the “Prudent 
Person” standard, any person or firm hired or retained as an Investment Manager, or otherwise retained to 
invest, monitor, or advise concerning these assets shall be held to the higher standard of “Prudent Expert”.  
The standard shall be that in investing and reinvesting moneys and in acquiring, retaining, managing, and 
disposing of investments of these funds, the Investment Manager shall exercise: the judgment, care, skill, 
prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion, 
and intelligence, acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an 
enterprise of like character and with like aims by diversifying the investments of the funds, so as to 
minimize the risk, considering the probable income as well as the probable safety of their capital. 

 
 
  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  2.29",  No bullets or numbering



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 6 

VI. ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

Authorized Staff involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could 
conflict with proper execution of the investment program, or which could impair their ability to make 
impartial investment decisions.  
 
Also, Authorized Staff or other employees involved in the investment process shall disclose in writing to 
CFX and the Board any material financial interests in financial institutions that conduct business with the 
Board, and they shall further disclose any material personal financial/investment positions that could be 
related to the performance of CFX’s Portfolio. 

 
 
VII. INTERNAL CONTROLS AND INVESTMENT PROCEDURES 
 

The Chief Financial Officer shall establish a system of internal controls and operational procedures to 
protect CFX’s assets, including the Portfolio, and ensure proper accounting and reporting of the transactions 
related thereto. No person may engage in an investment transaction except as authorized under the terms 
of this Policy. Independent auditors shall conduct a review of the system of internal controls with respect 
to, among other things, the Portfolio and the investment thereof as a normal part of the annual financial 
audit of CFX.  Such internal controls shall include, but not limited to, the following: 

 
Separation of functions: 

By separating the person who authorizes or performs the transaction from the person or persons who 
record or otherwise account for the transaction, a proper separation of duties is achieved. 

  Custodial safekeeping: 

Securities purchased from any bank or dealer, including appropriate collateral, shall be placed into a 
third party bank for custodial safekeeping. 

  Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members: 

Subordinate staff must have a clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to avoid any 
improper actions.  Clear delegation of authority also preserves the internal control structure that is built 
around the various staff positions and their respective responsibilities. 

Written confirmation of electronically initiated transactions for investments and wire transfers: 

Due to the potential for error and improprieties arising from telephone or other electronically initiated 
transactions, all such transactions should be supported by written communications and approved by an 
individual other than the individual initiating said transaction.  Repetitive wires do not require a 
secondary approval; however, all non-repetitive wires shall have secondary approval. 

  Documentation of transactions and strategies: 

All transactions and the strategies that were used to develop said transactions should  be documented 
in writing and approved by the appropriate person. 

  



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 7 

 

VIII. CONTINUING EDUCATION 

 
The Chief Financial Officer and appropriate Authorized Staff shall annually complete 8 hours of continuing 
education in subjects or courses of study related to investment practices and products, pursuant to Section 
218.415(14) F.S.. 
 

IX. AUTHORIZED INVESTMENT INSTITUTIONS AND DEALERS 
 

Authorized Staff shall only purchase securities from financial institutions, which are qualified as public 
depositories by the Treasurer, or Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida, institutions designated as 
“Primary Dealers” as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, direct issuers of commercial 
paper and bankers’ acceptances, approved non-primary dealers, or Minority/Women Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise (“M/WBE”) securities dealers. The Investment Manager shall utilize and maintain its 
own list of approved primary dealers, non-primary dealers and M/WBE securities dealers.  The Investment 
Manager will provide a quarterly report to CFX detailing the M/WBE trading activity. 

 
Authorized Staff and Investment Manager shall only enter into Repurchase agreements with “Primary 
Dealers” as designated by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and financial institutions that are state 
qualified public depositories. 
 
 

X. MATURITY AND LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. To the extent possible, an attempt will be made to match investment maturities with known cash 
needs and anticipated cash flow requirements of CFX.  
 
A.  Maturity Guidelines 

 Investments of current operating funds shall have maturities of no longer than twenty-four (24) 
months.  Investments of bond reserves, construction funds, and other non-operating funds (“core 
funds”) shall have a term appropriate to the need for funds and in accordance with debt covenants.  
The purchase of investments for core funds with maturities longer than five and a half (5.50) years 
requires CFX’s approval prior to purchase.  However, final maximum maturity for any investment 
is limited to ten (10) years.  The maturities of the underlying securities of a repurchase agreement 
will follow the requirements of the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) 
Master Repurchase Agreements. 
 
 

B.  Liquidity Requirements 
Investments of bond reserves, construction funds, and other non-operating funds (“core funds”) 
shall have a term appropriate to the need for funds and in accordance with debt covenants. 

 
 
XI. RISK AND DIVERSIFICATION 
 

The Portfolio shall be diversified to control risks resulting from over concentration of assets in a specific 
maturity, issuer, instrument, dealer, or bank through which these securities are bought and sold.  The Chief 
Financial Officer shall determine diversification strategies within the established guidelines. 

 
 
 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 8 

 
 
 
XII.  MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

CFX will require all approved institutions and dealers transacting repurchase agreements to execute and 
perform as stated in the SIFMA Master Repurchase Agreement.  All repurchase agreement transactions 
will adhere to requirements of the SIFMA Master Repurchase Agreement. 
 
 
 

  



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 9 

XIII. DERIVATIVES AND REVERSE REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS 
 

Investment in any derivative products or the use of reverse repurchase agreements is specifically prohibited 
by this investment policy, unless permitted in Section XV of this Policy.  A “derivative” is defined as a 
financial instrument the value of which depends on, or is derived from, the value of one or more underlying 
assets or indices or asset values.  However, for the purpose of a financing mechanism for funding CFX’s 
Five-Year Work Plan, derivatives are permitted.  Please refer to CFX’s Swap Policy. 

 
 
XIV. COMPETITIVE SELECTION OF INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS 
 

After the Investment Manager or the Chief Financial Officer has determined the approximate maturity date 
based on cash flow needs and market conditions and has analyzed and selected one or more optimal types 
of investments, a minimum of three (3) reputable, qualified, and financially sound banks and/or dealers 
must be contacted and asked to provide bids on securities in questions.  Bids will be held in confidence 
until the highest bid deemed to best meet the investment objectives is determined and selectawarded. 
 
However, on an exception basis, securities may be purchased utilizing the comparison to current market 
price method.  Acceptable current market price providers include, but are not limited to: 

 
A. TradeWeb, 
 
B. Bloomberg Information Systems, 
 
C. The Wall Street Journal or a comparable nationally recognized financial publication providing 

daily market pricing, 
 
D. Daily market pricing provided by CFX’s custody agents or their correspondent institutions, 

 
E. Such other current market price provider that the Investment Manager shall recommend to CFX as 

a regular provider of such information. 
 

Selection by comparison to a current market price, as indicated above, shall only be utilized when, in 
judgment of the Investment Manager, CFX, or Chief Financial Officer, competitive bidding would inhibit 
the selection process. 
 
Examples of when this method may be used include: 

 
A. When time constraints due to unusual circumstances preclude the use of the competitive bidding 

process. 
 
B. When no active market exists for the issue being traded due to the age or depth of the issue. 
 
C. When a security is unique to a single dealer, for example, a private placement. 
 
D. When the transaction involves new issues or issues in the “when issued” market. 

 
Overnight sweep repurchase agreements will not be bid, but may be placed with the depository bank 
relating to the demand account for which the repurchase agreement was purchased. 

 
  



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 10 

 
XV.  AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS AND PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION 
 

Investments should be made subject to the cash flow needs and such cash flows are subject to revisions as 
market conditions and CFX’s needs change.  However, when the invested funds are needed in whole or in 
part for the purpose originally intended or for more optimal investments, Authorized Staff may sell an 
investment at the then-prevailing market price and place the proceeds into the proper account at the Board’s 
custodian.  
 
The following are the guidelines for investments and limits on security types, issuers, and maturities as 
established by CFX.  CFX or the Chief Financial Officer shall have the option to further restrict investment 
percentages from time to time based on market conditions, risk, and diversification investment strategies.  
The percentage allocations requirements for investment types and issuers are calculated based on the 
original cost of each investment, at the time of purchase.  Investments not listed in this Policy are prohibited.  
The following is a summary table of the permitted investments and their respective allocation limits.  The 
allocation limits are for non- bond proceeds. 
 
 

Permitted Investments 

Sector 
Sector 

Maximum 
(%) 

Per Issuer 
Maximum  

(%) 
Minimum Ratings Requirement1 

Maximum 
Maturity 

Master 
Bond 

Resolution 
Permitted 

Investments 

U.S. Treasury 

100% 

100% 

N/A 

5.50 Years 
(5.50 Years 

avg. life4  
for GNMA) 

X 

GNMA 40% X 

Other U.S. Government 
Guaranteed (e.g. AID, GTC) 10% X 

Federal Agency/GSE: 
FNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, FFCB* 

75% 

40%3 

N/A 5.50 Years 

X 

Federal Agency/GSE  
other than those above 

10% X 

Supranationals 
where U.S. is a shareholder 

and voting member 
25% 10% 

Highest ST or Two Highest LT Rating Categories  
(A-1/P-1, AAA/Aaa, or equivalent) 5.50 Years  

Corporates 50%2 5% Highest ST or Three Highest LT Rating Categories 
(A-1/P-1, A-/A3 or equivalent) 5.50 Years  

Municipals 25% 5% 
Highest ST or Three Highest LT Rating Categories  

 (SP-1/MIG 1, A-/A3, or equivalent) 5.50 Years X 

Agency Mortgage-Backed 
Securities (MBS) 

25% 40%3 N/A 
5.50 Years  
Avg. Life4  

Asset-Backed Securities (ABS) 25% 5% 
Highest ST or LT Rating 

(A-1+/P-1, AAA/Aaa, or equivalent) 
5.50 Years  
Avg. Life4  

Depository Accounts with 
Qualified Public Depositories 

75% 50% N/A N/A X 

Non-Negotiable Collateralized 
Bank Deposits or Savings 

Accounts 
50% 

None, if fully 
collateralized 

None, if fully collateralized. 2 Years X 

Commercial Paper (CP) 50%2 5% Highest ST Rating Category  
(A-1/P-1, or equivalent) 270 Days X 

Bankers’ Acceptances (BAs) 10%2 5% Highest ST Rating Category  
(A-1/P-1, or equivalent) 180 Days X 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 11 

Sector 
Sector 

Maximum 
(%) 

Per Issuer 
Maximum  

(%) 
Minimum Ratings Requirement1 

Maximum 
Maturity 

Master 
Bond 

Resolution 
Permitted 

Investments 

Repurchase Agreements 
(Repo or RP) 40% 20% 

Counterparty (or if the counterparty is not rated by an 
NRSRO, then the counterparty’s parent) must be rated 

in the Highest ST Rating Category 
(A-1/P-1, or equivalent) 

If the counterparty is a Federal Reserve Bank, no rating 
is required 

1 Year X 

Money Market Funds (MMFs) 50% 25% 
Highest Fund Rating by all NRSROs who rate the fund 

(AAAm/Aaa-mf, or equivalent) N/A X 

Fixed-Income Mutual Funds 
and ETFs 

25% 10% N/A 3 Years  

Intergovernmental Pools 
(LGIPs) 50% 25% 

Highest Fund Quality and Volatility Rating Categories 
by all NRSROs who rate the LGIP,  
(AAAm/AAAf, S1, or equivalent) 

N/A  

Florida Local Government 
Surplus Funds Trust Funds 

(“Florida Prime”) 
25% N/A 

Highest Fund Rating by all NRSROs who rate the fund 
(AAAm/Aaa-mf, or equivalent) 

N/A X 

Notes: 
1 Rating by at least one SEC-registered Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization (“NRSRO”), unless otherwise noted.  ST=Short-term; 

LT=Long-term. 
2 Maximum allocation to all corporate and bank credit instruments is 50% combined. 
3 Maximum exposure to any one Federal agency, including the combined holdings of Agency debt and Agency MBS, is 40%. 
4 The maturity limit for MBS and ABS is based on the expected average life at time of settlement, measured using Bloomberg or other industry standard 

methods.  

* Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA); Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC); Federal Home Loan Bank or its District banks 
(FHLB); Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB). 

 
1) U.S. Treasury & Government Guaranteed - U.S. Treasury obligations, and obligations the principal and 

interest of which are backed or guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. 

2) Federal Agency/GSE - Debt obligations, participations or other instruments issued or fully guaranteed by 
any U.S. Federal agency, instrumentality or government-sponsored enterprise (GSE). 

3) Supranationals – U.S. dollar denominated debt obligations of a multilateral organization of governments, 
which are U.S. Federal Instrumentalities, where U.S. is a shareholder and voting member.  

4) Corporates – U.S. dollar denominated corporate notes, bonds or other debt obligations issued or 
guaranteed by a domestic or foreign corporation, financial institution, non-profit, or other entity. 

5) Municipals – Obligations, including both taxable and tax-exempt, issued or guaranteed by any State, 
territory or possession of the United States, political subdivision, public corporation, authority, agency 
board, instrumentality or other unit of local government of any State or territory. 

6) Agency Mortgage Backed Securities - Mortgage-backed securities (MBS), backed by residential, multi-
family or commercial mortgages, that are issued or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by a U.S. 
Federal agency or government sponsored enterprise, including but not limited to pass-throughs, 
collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and REMICs. 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 12 

7) Asset-Backed Securities - Asset-backed securities (ABS) whose underlying collateral consists of loans, 
leases or receivables, including but not limited to auto loans/leases, credit card receivables, student loans, 
equipment loans/leases, or home-equity loans. 

8) Depository Accounts with Qualified Public Depositories - Banks organized under the laws of this state 
and/or in national banks organized under the laws of the United States and doing business and situated in 
this state, provided that any such deposits are secured by the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, 
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. 

9) Non-Negotiable Certificate of Deposit and Savings Accounts - Non-negotiable interest bearing time 
certificates of deposit, or savings accounts in banks organized under the laws of this state or in national 
banks organized under the laws of the United States and doing business in this state, provided that any such 
deposits are secured by the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. 

10) Commercial Paper – U.S. dollar denominated commercial paper issued or guaranteed by a domestic or 
foreign corporation, company, financial institution, trust or other entity, including both unsecured debt and 
asset-backed programs. 

11) Bankers’ Acceptances - Bankers’ acceptances issued, drawn on, or guaranteed by a U.S. bank or U.S. 
branch of a foreign bank. 

12) Repurchase Agreements - Repurchase agreements (Repo or RP) that meet the following requirements: 

a. Must be governed by a written SIFMA Master Repurchase Agreement which specifies securities 
eligible for purchase and resale, and which provides the unconditional right to liquidate the 
underlying securities should the Counterparty default or fail to provide full timely repayment. 

b. Counterparty must be a Federal Reserve Bank, a Primary Dealer as designated by the Federal 
Reserve Bank of New York, or a nationally chartered commercial bank. 

c. Securities underlying repurchase agreements must be delivered to a third party custodian under a 
written custodial agreement and may be of deliverable or tri-party form.  Securities must be held 
in CFX’s custodial account or in a separate account in the name of CFX. 

d. Acceptable underlying securities include only securities that are direct obligations of, or that are 
fully guaranteed by, the United States or any agency of the United States, or U.S. Agency-backed 
mortgage related securities.  

e. Underlying securities must have an aggregate current market value of at least 102% (or 100% if 
the counterparty is a Federal Reserve Bank) of the purchase price plus current accrued price 
differential at the close of each business day. 

f. Final term of the agreement must be 1 year or less. 

13) Money Market Funds - Shares in open-end and no-load money market mutual funds, provided such funds 
are registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and operate in accordance with Rule 2a-7. 

A thorough investigation of any money market fund is required prior to investing, and on an annual basis.  
Attachment B is a questionnaire that contains a list of questions, to be answered prior to investing, that 
cover the major aspects of any investment pool/fund.  A current prospectus must be obtained. 
 

14) Fixed-Income Mutual Funds and ETFs – Shares in open-end and no-load mutual funds or exchange-
traded funds (EFTs) whose stated offering investment strategy is to invest in investment grade fixed-income 
securities. - Shares in open-end and no-load fixed-income mutual funds whose underlying investments 
would be permitted for purchase under this policy and all its restrictions. 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 13 

15) Local Government Investment Pools – State, local government or privately-sponsored investment pools 
that are authorized pursuant to state law. 

A thorough investigation of any intergovernmental investment pool is required prior to investing, and on 
an annual basis.  Attachment B is a questionnaire that contains a list of questions, to be answered prior to 
investing, that cover the major aspects of any investment pool/fund.  A current prospectus must be obtained. 
 

16) The Florida Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Funds (“Florida Prime”) A thorough 
investigation of the Florida Prime is required prior to investing, and on an annual basis.  Attachment B is a 
questionnaire that contains a list of questions, to be answered prior to investing, that cover the major aspects 
of any investment pool/fund.  A current prospectus or portfolio report must be obtained. 
 

General Investment and Portfolio Limits 

1. General investment limitations: 

a. Investments must be denominated in U.S. dollars and issued for legal sale in U.S. markets. 

b. Minimum ratings are based on the highest rating by any one Nationally Recognized Statistical 
Ratings Organization (“NRSRO”), unless otherwise specified.   

c. All limits and rating requirements apply at time of purchase.   

d. Should a security fall below the minimum credit rating requirement for purchase, the Investment 
Advisor will notify the Chief Financial Officer. 

e. The maximum maturity (or average life for MBS/ABS) of any investment is 5.50 years.  Maturity 
and average life are measured from settlement date.  The final maturity date can be based on any 
mandatory call, put, pre-refunding date, or other mandatory redemption date. 

2. General portfolio limitations: 

a. The maximum effective duration of the aggregate portfolio is 3 years. 

b. Maximum exposure to issuers in any non-U.S. country cannot exceed 10 percent per country. 

3. Investment in the following are permitted, provided they meet all other policy requirements: 
a. Callable, step-up callable, called, pre-refunded, putable and extendable securities, as long as the 

effective final maturity meets the maturity limits for the sector 
b. Variable-rate and floating-rate securities 
c. Subordinated, secured and covered debt, if it meets the ratings requirements for the sector 
d. Zero coupon issues and strips, excluding agency mortgage-backed Interest-only structures (I/Os) 
e. Treasury TIPS 

4. The following are NOT PERMITTED investments, unless specifically authorized by statute and with 
prior approval of the governing body:  

a. Trading for speculation 
b. Derivatives (other than callables and traditional floating or variable-rate instruments)  
c. Mortgage-backed interest-only structures  (I/Os) 
d. Inverse or leveraged floating-rate and variable-rate instruments 
e. Currency, equity, index and event-linked notes (e.g. range notes), or other structures that could 

return less than par at maturity 
f. Private placements and direct loans, except as may be legally permitted by Rule 144A or 

commercial paper issued under a 4(2) exemption from registration 
g. Convertible, high yield, and non-U.S. dollar denominated debt 
h. Short sales  
i. Use of leverage 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 14 

j. Futures and options 
k. Mutual funds, other than fixed-income mutual funds and ETFs, and money market funds 
l. Equities, commodities, currencies and hard assets 

 
 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 15 

XVI. PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS 
 

In order to assist in the evaluation of the portfolio’s performance, CFX will use performance benchmarks.  
The use of benchmarks will allow CFX to measure its returns against other investors in the same markets.   
 

A. The S&P Rated GIP Index Government 30 Day Gross Yield Index will be used as a benchmark as 
compared to the portfolios' net book value rate of return for current operating funds. 

 
B. Investment performance of funds designated as reserve funds and other non-operating funds (core 

funds) that have a longer-term investment horizon will be compared to the Bank of America Merrill 
Lynch 1-3 Year U.S. Treasury/Agency Index.  This index has a duration and asset mix that is similar 
to the Portfolio and will be utilized as a benchmark to be compared to the Portfolio’s total rate of 
return. 

 
 

XVII. REPORTING 
 

The Chief Financial Officer and/or Investment Manager shall provide the Executive Director and the 
Finance Committee with at least quarterly investment reports.  Schedules in the quarterly report should 
include the following: 
 
A. A listing of individual securities held at the end of the reporting period  

 
B. Percentage of available funds represented by each investment type 

 
C. Coupon, discount or earning rate 

 
D. Final maturity date of all investments  

 
E. Book value and market value 

 
On an annual basis, the Investment Manager shall prepare and submit to the Finance Committee a written 
report on all invested funds.  The annual report shall provide all, but not limited to, the following: a complete 
list of all invested funds, name or type of security in which the funds are invested, the amount invested, the 
maturity date, earned income, the book value, the market value and the yield on each investment.   
 
The annual report will show performance on both a book value and total rate of return basis when required 
and will compare the results to the above-stated performance benchmarks.  All investments shall be 
reported at fair value per GASB standards.  Investment reports shall be available to the public. 

 
 
XVIII. THIRD-PARTY CUSTODIAL AGREEMENTS 
 

All securities, with the exception of certificates of deposits, shall be held with a third party custodian; and 
all securities purchased by, and all collateral obtained by; CFX should be properly designated as an asset 
of CFX.  The securities must be held in an account separate and apart from the assets of the financial 
institution.  A third party custodian is defined as any bank depository chartered by the Federal Government, 
the State of Florida, or any other state or territory of the United States which has a branch or principal place 
of business in the State of Florida as defined in Section 658.12, Florida Statutes, or by a national association 
organized and existing under the laws of the United States which is authorized to accept and execute trusts 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 16 

and which is doing business in the State of Florida.  Certificates of deposits will be placed in the provider’s 
safekeeping department for the term of the deposit. 

CFX will execute a third party custodial agreement(s) with its bank(s) and depository institution(s).  Such 
agreements may include letters of authority from CFX, details as to the responsibilities of each party, 
method of notification of security purchases, sales and delivery procedures related to repurchase 
agreements and wire transfers, safekeeping and transaction costs, procedures in case of wire failure or other 
unforeseen mishaps and describing the liability of each party. 

 
The custodian shall accept transaction instructions only from those persons who have been duly authorized 
by CFX and which authorization has been provided, in writing, to the custodian. 
No withdrawal of securities, in whole or in part, shall be made from safekeeping, shall be permitted unless 
by such a duly authorized person. 
 
The custodian shall provide CFX with safekeeping receipts that provide detail information on the securities 
held by the custodian.  Security transactions between a broker/dealer and the custodian involving the 
purchase or sale of securities by transfer of money or securities must be made on a “delivery vs. payment” 
basis, if applicable, to ensure that the custodian will have the security or money, as appropriate, in hand at 
the conclusion of the transaction.  Securities held as collateral shall be held free and clear of any liens. 

 
 
XIX.  INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION 
 

The investment policy shall be adopted by the CFX Governing Board resolution.  The Chief Financial 
Officer, Executive Director and the Finance Committee shall review the policy every two years and the 
Board shall approve any modification made thereto. 

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE BOARD ON THIS 14 day of May 2015_____________. 
 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 17 

Attachment A 
Glossary of Cash and Investment Management Terms 

 
The following is a glossary of key investing terms, many of which appear in CFX’s Investment Policy. This glossary 
clarifies the meaning of investment terms generally used in cash and investment management. This glossary has 
been adapted from the GFOA Sample Investment Policy and the Association of Public Treasurers of the United 
States and Canada’s Model Investment Policy.  

Accrued Interest.  Interest earned but which has not yet been paid or received. 

Agency.  See "Federal Agency Securities." 

Ask Price.  Price at which a broker/dealer offers to sell a security to an investor. Also known as “offered price.” 

Asset Backed Securities (ABS).  A fixed-income security backed by notes or receivables against assets other than 
real estate. Generally issued by special purpose companies that “own” the assets and issue the ABS. Examples 
include securities backed by auto loans, credit card receivables, home equity loans, manufactured housing loans, 
farm equipment loans, and aircraft leases. 

Average Life.  The average length of time that an issue of serial bonds and/or term bonds with a mandatory sinking 
fund feature is expected to be outstanding. 

Bankers' Acceptance (BA's).  A draft or bill of exchange drawn upon and accepted by a bank.  Frequently used to 
finance shipping of international goods. Used as a short-term credit instrument, bankers' acceptances are traded at 
a discount from face value as a money market instrument in the secondary market on the basis of the credit quality 
of the guaranteeing bank. 

Basis Point.  One hundredth of one percent, or 0.01%. Thus 1% equals 100 basis points. 

Bearer Security.  A security whose ownership is determined by the holder of the physical security.  Typically, 
there is no registration on the issuer’s books. Title to bearer securities is transferred by delivery of the physical 
security or certificate. Also known as “physical securities.” 

Benchmark Bills:  In November 1999, FNMA introduced its Benchmark Bills program, a short-term debt securities 
issuance program to supplement its existing discount note program. The program includes a schedule of larger, 
weekly issues in three- and six-month maturities and biweekly issues in one-year for Benchmark Bills. Each issue 
is brought to market via a Dutch (single price) auction. FNMA conducts a weekly auction for each Benchmark Bill 
maturity and accepts both competitive and non-competitive bids through a web based auction system. This program 
is in addition to the variety of other discount note maturities, with rates posted on a daily basis, which FNMA offers. 
FNMA's Benchmark Bills are unsecured general obligations that are issued in book-entry form through the Federal 
Reserve Banks. There are no periodic payments of interest on Benchmark Bills, which are sold at a discount from 
the principal amount and payable at par at maturity. Issues under the Benchmark program constitute the same credit 
standing as other FNMA discount notes; they simply add organization and liquidity to the short-term Agency 
discount note market. 

Benchmark Notes/Bonds:  Benchmark Notes and Bonds are a series of FNMA “bullet” maturities (non-callable) 
issued according to a pre-announced calendar. Under its Benchmark Notes/Bonds program, 2, 3, 5, 10, and 30-year 
maturities are issued each quarter. Each Benchmark Notes new issue has a minimum size of $4 billion, 30-year new 
issues having a minimum size of $1 billion, with re-openings based on investor demand to further enhance liquidity. 
The amount of non-callable issuance has allowed FNMA to build a yield curve in Benchmark Notes and Bonds in 
maturities ranging from 2 to 30 years. The liquidity emanating from these large size issues has facilitated favorable 
financing opportunities through the development of a liquid overnight and term repo market. Issues under the 
Benchmark program constitute the same credit standing as other FNMA issues; they simply add organization and 
liquidity to the intermediate- and long-term Agency market. 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 18 

Benchmark.  A market index used as a comparative basis for measuring the performance of an investment portfolio. 
A performance benchmark should represent a close correlation to investment guidelines, risk tolerance, and duration 
of the actual portfolio's investments. 

Bid Price.  Price at which a broker/dealer offers to purchase a security from an investor.   

Bond.  Financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder (the purchaser or owner of the 
bond) a specified stream of future cash-flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment. 

Book Entry Securities.  Securities that are recorded in a customer’s account electronically through one of the 
financial markets electronic delivery and custody systems, such as the Fed Securities wire, DTC, and PTC  

(as opposed to bearer or physical securities).  The trend is toward a certificate-free society in order to cut down on 
paperwork and to diminish investors’ concerns about the certificates themselves. The vast majority of securities are 
now book entry securities. 

Book Value.  The value at which a debt security is reflected on the holder's records at any point in time. Book value 
is also called “amortized cost” as it represents the original cost of an investment adjusted for amortization of 
premium or accretion of discount. Also called “carrying value.” Book value can vary over time as an investment 
approaches maturity and differs from “market value” in that it is not affected by changes in market interest rates. 

Broker/Dealer.  A person or firm transacting securities business with customers. A “broker” acts as an agent 
between buyers and sellers, and receives a commission for these services. A “dealer” buys and sells financial assets 
from its own portfolio. A dealer takes risk by owning inventory of securities, whereas a broker merely matches up 
buyers and sellers. See also "Primary Dealer." 

Bullet Notes/Bonds.  Notes or bonds that have a single maturity date and are non-callable. 

Call Date.  Date at which a call option may be or is exercised. 

Call Option.  The right, but not the obligation, of an issuer of a security to redeem a security at a specified value 
and at a specified date or dates prior to its stated maturity date. Most fixed-income calls are a par, but can be at any 
previously established price. Securities issued with a call provision typically carry a higher yield than similar 
securities issued without a call feature. There are three primary types of call options (1) European - one-time calls, 
(2) Bermudan - periodically on a predetermined schedule (quarterly, semi-annual, annual), and (3) American - 
continuously callable at any time on or after the call date. There is usually a notice period of at least 5 business days 
prior to a call date. 

Callable Bonds/Notes.  Securities which contain an imbedded call option giving the issuer the right to redeem the 
securities prior to maturity at a predetermined price and time. 

Certificate of Deposit (CD).  Bank obligation issued by a financial institution generally offering a fixed rate of 
return (coupon) for a specified period of time (maturity). Can be as long as 10 years to maturity, but most CDs 
purchased by public agencies are one year and under.  

Collateral.  Investment securities or other property that a borrower pledges to secure repayment of a loan, secure 
deposits of public monies, or provide security for a repurchase agreement. 

Collateralization.  Process by which a borrower pledges securities, property, or other deposits for securing the 
repayment of a loan and/or security. 

Collateralized Mortgage Obligation (CMO).  A security that pools together mortgages and separates them into 
short, medium, and long-term positions (called tranches). Tranches are set up to pay different rates of interest 
depending upon their maturity. Interest payments are usually paid monthly. In “plain vanilla” CMOs, principal is 
not paid on a tranche until all shorter tranches have been paid off. This system provides interest and principal in a 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 19 

more predictable manner. A single pool of mortgages can be carved up into numerous tranches each with its own 
payment and risk characteristics. 

Commercial Paper.  Short term unsecured promissory note issued by a company or financial institution.  Issued 
at a discount and matures for par or face value. Usually a maximum maturity of 270 days and given a short-term 
debt rating by one or more NRSROs. 

Convexity.  A measure of a bond's price sensitivity to changing interest rates. A high convexity indicates greater 
sensitivity of a bond's price to interest rate changes. 

Corporate Note.  A debt instrument issued by a corporation with a maturity of greater than one year and less than 
ten years.  

Counterparty.  The other party in a two party financial transaction. "Counterparty risk" refers to the risk that the 
other party to a transaction will fail in its related obligations. For example, the bank or broker/dealer in a repurchase 
agreement. 

Coupon Rate.  Annual rate of interest on a debt security, expressed as a percentage of the bond’s face value. 

Current Yield.  Annual rate of return on a bond based on its price. Calculated as (coupon rate / price), but does not 
accurately reflect a bond’s true yield level. 

Custody.  Safekeeping services offered by a bank, financial institution, or trust company, referred to as the 
“custodian.” Service normally includes the holding and reporting of the customer's securities, the collection and 
disbursement of income, securities settlement, and market values. 

Dealer.  A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, buying and selling for his/her own 
account. 

Delivery Versus Payment (DVP).  Settlement procedure in which securities are delivered versus payment of cash, 
but only after cash has been received. Most security transactions, including those through the Fed Securities Wire 
system and DTC, are done DVP as a protection for both the buyer and seller of securities. 

Depository Trust Company (DTC).  A firm through which members can use a computer to arrange for securities 
to be delivered to other members without physical delivery of certificates. A member of the Federal Reserve System 
and owned mostly by the New York Stock Exchange, the Depository Trust Company uses computerized debit and 
credit entries. Most corporate securities, commercial paper, CDs, and BAs clear through DTC. 

Derivatives.  (1) Financial instruments whose return profile is linked to, or derived from, the movement of one or 
more underlying index or security, and may include a leveraging factor, or (2) financial contracts based upon 
notional amounts whose value is derived from an underlying index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange 
rates, equities, or commodities). For hedging purposes, common derivatives are options, futures, interest rate swaps, 
and swaptions.   

Derivative Security.  Financial instrument created from, or whose value depends upon, one or more underlying 
assets or indexes of asset values. 

Designated Bond.  FFCB’s regularly issued, liquid, non-callable securities that generally have a 2 or 3 year original 
maturity. New issues of Designated Bonds are $1 billion or larger. Re-openings of existing Designated Bond issues 
are generally a minimum of $100 million. Designated Bonds are offered through a syndicate of two to six dealers. 
Twice each month the Funding Corporation announces its intention to issue a new Designated Bond, reopen an 
existing issue, or to not issue or reopen a Designated Bond. Issues under the Designated Bond program constitute 
the same credit standing as other FFCB issues; they simply add organization and liquidity to the intermediate- and 
long-term Agency market. 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 20 

Discount Notes.  Unsecured general obligations issued by Federal Agencies at a discount. Discount notes mature 
at par and can range in maturity from overnight to one year. Very large primary (new issue) and secondary markets 
exist. 

Discount Rate.  Rate charged by the system of Federal Reserve Banks on overnight loans to member banks. 
Changes to this rate are administered by the Federal Reserve and closely mirror changes to the “fed funds rate.” 

Discount Securities.  Non-interest bearing money market instruments that are issued at discount and redeemed at 
maturity for full face value. Examples include: U.S. Treasury Bills, Federal Agency Discount Notes, Bankers' 
Acceptances, and Commercial Paper. 

Discount.  The amount by which a bond or other financial instrument sells below its face value. See also "Premium." 

Diversification.  Dividing investment funds among a variety of security types, maturities, industries, and issuers 
offering potentially independent returns. 

Dollar Price.  A bond’s cost expressed as a percentage of its face value. For example, a bond quoted at a dollar 
price of 95 ½, would have a principal cost of $955 per $1,000 of face value. 

Duff & Phelps.  One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and bank debt issues. 

Duration.  The weighted average maturity of a security’s or portfolio’s cash-flows, where the present values of the 
cash-flows serve as the weights. The greater the duration of a security/portfolio, the greater its percentage price 
volatility with respect to changes in interest rates. Used as a measure of risk and a key tool for managing a portfolio 
versus a benchmark and for hedging risk. There are also different kinds of duration used for different purposes (e.g. 
MacAuley Duration, Modified Duration). 

Fannie Mae.  See "Federal National Mortgage Association." 

Fed Money Wire.  A computerized communications system that connects the Federal Reserve System with its 
member banks, certain U. S. Treasury offices, and the Washington D.C. office of the Commodity Credit 
Corporation. The Fed Money Wire is the book entry system used to transfer cash balances between banks for 
themselves and for customer accounts. 

Fed Securities Wire.  A computerized communications system that facilitates book entry transfer of securities 
between banks, brokers and customer accounts, used primarily for settlement of U.S. Treasury and Federal Agency 
securities. 

Fed.  See "Federal Reserve System." 

Federal Agency Security.  A debt instrument issued by one of the Federal Agencies.  Federal Agencies are 
considered second in credit quality and liquidity only to U.S. Treasuries. 

Federal Agency.  Government sponsored/owned entity created by the U.S. Congress, generally for the purpose of 
acting as a financial intermediary by borrowing in the marketplace and directing proceeds to specific areas of the 
economy considered to otherwise have restricted access to credit markets. The largest Federal Agencies are GNMA, 
FNMA, FHLMC, FHLB, FFCB, SLMA, and TVA. 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  Federal agency that insures deposits at commercial banks, 
currently to a limit of $250,000 per depositor per bank. 

Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB).  One of the large Federal Agencies.  A government sponsored enterprise 
(GSE) system that is a network of cooperatively-owned lending institutions that provides credit services to farmers, 
agricultural cooperatives and rural utilities. The FFCBs act as financial intermediaries that borrow money in the 
capital markets and use the proceeds to make loans and provide other assistance to farmers and farm-affiliated 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 21 

businesses. Consists of the consolidated operations of the Banks for Cooperatives, Federal Intermediate Credit 
Banks, and Federal Land Banks.  Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. 
FFCB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is considered to have 
minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and agricultural industry. Also issues notes 
under its “designated note” program. 

Federal Funds (Fed Funds).  Funds placed in Federal Reserve Banks by depository institutions in excess of current 
reserve requirements, and frequently loaned or borrowed on an overnight basis between depository institutions. 

Federal Funds Rate (Fed Funds Rate).  The interest rate charged by a depository institution lending Federal 
Funds to another depository institution. The Federal Reserve influences this rate by establishing a "target" Fed 
Funds rate associated with the Fed's management of monetary policy. 

Federal Home Loan Bank System (FHLB).  One of the large Federal Agencies. A government sponsored 
enterprise (GSE) system, consisting of wholesale banks (currently twelve district banks) owned by their member 
banks, which provides correspondent banking services and credit to various financial institutions, financed by the 
issuance of securities. The principal purpose of the FHLB is to add liquidity to the mortgage markets. Although 
FHLB does not directly fund mortgages, it provides a stable supply of credit to thrift institutions that make new 
mortgage loans. FHLB debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, although it is 
considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing market. 
Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes and callable agency securities. Also issues notes under its “global 
note” and “TAP” programs. 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or "Freddie Mac").  One of the large Federal Agencies. 
A government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides stability and assistance to the secondary market 
for home mortgages by purchasing first mortgages and participation interests financed by the sale of debt and 
guaranteed mortgage backed securities. FHLMC debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. 
government, although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system 
and housing market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities, and MBS. Also 
issues notes under its “reference note” program. 

Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or "Fannie Mae").  One of the large Federal Agencies. A 
government sponsored public corporation (GSE) that provides liquidity to the residential mortgage market by 
purchasing mortgage loans from lenders, financed by the issuance of debt securities and MBS (pools of mortgages 
packaged together as a security). FNMA debt is not an obligation of, nor is it guaranteed by the U.S. government, 
although it is considered to have minimal credit risk due to its importance to the U.S. financial system and housing 
market. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, callable agency securities and MBS. Also issues notes 
under its “benchmark note” program. 

Federal Reserve Bank.  One of the 12 distinct banks of the Federal Reserve System. 

Federal Reserve System (the Fed).  The independent central bank system of the United States that establishes and 
conducts the nation's monetary policy. This is accomplished in three major ways: (1) raising or lowering bank 
reserve requirements, (2) raising or lowering the target Fed Funds Rate and Discount Rate, and (3) in open market 
operations by buying and selling government securities. The Federal Reserve System is made up of twelve Federal 
Reserve District Banks, their branches, and many national and state banks throughout the nation. It is headed by 
the seven member Board of Governors known as the “Federal Reserve Board” and headed by its Chairman. 

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (FINRA).  A private corporation that acts as a self-regulatory 
organization (SRO). FINRA is the successor to the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. (NASD). 
Though sometimes mistaken for a government agency, it is a non-governmental organization that performs financial 
regulation of member brokerage firms and exchange markets. The government also has a regulatory arm for 
investments, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 22 

Fiscal Agent/Paying Agent.  A bank or trust company that acts, under a trust agreement with a corporation or 
municipality, in the capacity of general treasurer. The agent performs such duties as making coupon payments, 
paying rents, redeeming bonds, and handling taxes relating to the issuance of bonds. 

Fitch Investors Service, Inc.  One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and municipal debt 
issues. 

Floating Rate Security (FRN or “floater”).  A bond with an interest rate that is adjusted according to changes in 
an interest rate or index.  Differs from variable-rate debt in that the changes to the rate take place immediately when 
the index changes, rather than on a predetermined schedule. See also “Variable Rate Security.” 

Freddie Mac.  See "Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation." 

Ginnie Mae.  See "Government National Mortgage Association." 

Global Notes:  Notes designed to qualify for immediate trading in both the domestic U.S. capital market and in 
foreign markets around the globe. Usually large issues that are sold to investors worldwide and therefore have 
excellent liquidity. Despite their global sales, global notes sold in the U.S. are typically denominated in U.S. dollars. 

Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or "Ginnie Mae").  One of the large Federal Agencies. 
Government-owned Federal Agency that acquires, packages, and resells mortgages and mortgage purchase 
commitments in the form of mortgage-backed securities. Largest issuer of mortgage pass-through securities. 
GNMA debt is guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government (one of the few agencies that are 
actually full faith and credit of the U.S. government). 

Government Securities.  An obligation of the U.S. government, backed by the full faith and credit of the 
government. These securities are regarded as the highest quality of investment securities available in the U.S. 
securities market. See "Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, and SLGS." 

Government Sponsored Enterprise (GSE).  Privately owned entity subject to federal regulation and supervision, 
created by the U.S. Congress to reduce the cost of capital for certain borrowing sectors of the economy such as 
students, farmers, and homeowners. GSEs carry the implicit backing of the U.S. government, but they are not direct 
obligations of the U.S. government. For this reason, these securities will offer a yield premium over U.S. Treasuries. 
Examples of GSEs include: FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA, and SLMA. 

Government Sponsored Enterprise Security.  A security issued by a Government Sponsored Enterprise. 
Considered Federal Agency Securities. 

Index.  A compilation of statistical data that tracks changes in the economy or in financial markets. 

Interest-Only (IO) STRIP.  A security based solely on the interest payments from the bond. After the principal 
has been repaid, interest payments stop and the value of the security falls to nothing.   Therefore, IOs are considered 
risky investments. Usually associated with mortgage-backed securities. 

Internal Controls.  An internal control structure ensures that the assets of the entity are protected from loss, theft, 
or misuse. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. 
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely 
to be derived and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. Internal 
controls should address the following points:  
 

1. Control of collusion - Collusion is a situation where two or more employees are working in conjunction 
to defraud their employer.  

 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 23 

2. Separation of transaction authority from accounting and record keeping - A separation of duties is 
achieved by separating the person who authorizes or performs the transaction from the people who record 
or otherwise account for the transaction.  

 
3. Custodial safekeeping - Securities purchased from any bank or dealer including appropriate collateral (as 

defined by state law) shall be placed with an independent third party for custodial safekeeping.  
 

4. Avoidance of physical delivery securities - Book-entry securities are much easier to transfer and account 
for since actual delivery of a document never takes place. Delivered securities must be properly safeguarded 
against loss or destruction. The potential for fraud and loss increases with physically delivered securities.  

 
5. Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members - Subordinate staff members must have a 

clear understanding of their authority and responsibilities to avoid improper actions. Clear delegation of 
authority also preserves the internal control structure that is contingent on the various staff positions and 
their respective responsibilities.  

 
6. Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers - Due to the potential for error 

and improprieties arising from telephone and electronic transactions, all transactions should be supported 
by written communications and approved by the appropriate person. Written communications may be via 
fax if on letterhead and if the safekeeping institution has a list of authorized signatures.  

 
7. Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party custodian - The 

designated official should ensure that an agreement will be entered into and will address the following 
points: controls, security provisions, and responsibilities of each party making and receiving wire transfers. 

 
Inverse Floater.  A floating rate security structured in such a way that it reacts inversely to the direction of interest 
rates. Considered risky as their value moves in the opposite direction of normal fixed-income investments and 
whose interest rate can fall to zero. 

Investment Advisor.  A company that provides professional advice managing portfolios, investment 
recommendations, and/or research in exchange for a management fee.   

Investment Adviser Act of 1940. Federal legislation that sets the standards by which investment companies, such 
as mutual funds, are regulated in the areas of advertising, promotion, performance reporting requirements, and 
securities valuations. 

Investment Grade.  Bonds considered suitable for preservation of invested capital, including bonds rated a 
minimum of Baa3 by Moody’s, BBB- by Standard & Poor’s, or BBB- by Fitch. Although “BBB” rated bonds are 
considered investment grade, most public agencies cannot invest in securities rated below “A.” 

Liquidity.  Relative ease of converting an asset into cash without significant loss of value. Also, a relative measure 
of cash and near-cash items in a portfolio of assets. Additionally, it is a term describing the marketability of a money 
market security correlating to the narrowness of the spread between the bid and ask prices. 

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP).  An investment by local governments in which their money is pooled 
as a method for managing local funds, (e.g., Florida State Board of Administration’s Florida Prime Fund). 

Long-Term Core Investment Program.  Funds that are not needed within a one-year period. 

Market Value.  The fair market value of a security or commodity. The price at which a willing buyer and seller 
would pay for a security. 

Mark-to-market.  Adjusting the value of an asset to its market value, reflecting in the process unrealized gains or 
losses. 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 24 

Master Repurchase Agreement.  A widely accepted standard agreement form published by the Securities Industry 
and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) that is used to govern and document Repurchase Agreements and 
protect the interest of parties in a repo transaction. 

Maturity Date.  Date on which principal payment of a financial obligation is to be paid. 

Medium Term Notes (MTN's).  Used frequently to refer to corporate notes of medium maturity (5-years and 
under). Technically, any debt security issued by a corporate or depository institution with a maturity from 1 to 10 
years and issued under an MTN shelf registration. Usually issued in smaller issues with varying coupons and 
maturities, and underwritten by a variety of broker/dealers (as opposed to large corporate deals issued and 
underwritten all at once in large size and with a fixed coupon and maturity). 

Money Market.  The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills, commercial paper, bankers’ acceptance, 
etc.) are issued and traded. 

Money Market Mutual Fund (MMF).  A type of mutual fund that invests solely in money market instruments, 
such as: U.S. Treasury bills, commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, and repurchase agreements. Money market 
mutual funds are registered with the SEC under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and are subject to “rule 2a-
7” which significantly limits average maturity and credit quality of holdings. MMF’s are managed to maintain a 
stable net asset value (NAV) of $1.00. Many MMFs carry ratings by a NRSRO. 

Moody's Investors Service.  One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and municipal debt 
issues. 

Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS).  Mortgage-backed securities represent an ownership interest in a pool of 
mortgage loans made by financial institutions, such as savings and loans, commercial banks, or mortgage 
companies, to finance the borrower's purchase of a home or other real estate. The majority of MBS are issued and/or 
guaranteed by GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC. There are a variety of MBS structures with varying levels of risk and 
complexity. All MBS have reinvestment risk as actual principal and interest payments are dependent on the payment 
of the underlying mortgages which can be prepaid by mortgage holders to refinance and lower rates or simply 
because the underlying property was sold. 

Mortgage Pass-Through Securities.  A pool of residential mortgage loans with the monthly interest and principal 
distributed to investors on a pro-rata basis. The largest issuer is GNMA. 

Municipal Note/Bond.  A debt instrument issued by a state or local government unit or public agency.The vast 
majority of municipals are exempt from state and federal income tax, although some non-qualified issues are 
taxable. 

Mutual Fund.  Portfolio of securities professionally managed by a registered investment company that issues 
shares to investors. Many different types of mutual funds exist (e.g., bond, equity, and money market funds); all 
except money market funds operate on a variable net asset value (NAV). 

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit (Negotiable CD).  Large denomination CDs ($100,000 and larger) that are 
issued in bearer form and can be traded in the secondary market. 

Net Asset Value.  The market value of one share of an investment company, such as a mutual fund. This figure is 
calculated by totaling a fund's assets including securities, cash, and any accrued earnings, then subtracting the total 
assets from the fund's liabilities, and dividing this total by the number of shares outstanding. This is calculated once 
a day based on the closing price for each security in the fund's portfolio. (See below.)  
 

[(Total assets) - (Liabilities)]/(Number of shares outstanding) 
 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 25 

NRSRO.  A “Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization” (NRSRO) is a designated rating organization 
that the SEC has deemed a strong national presence in the U.S. NRSROs provide credit ratings on corporate and 
bank debt issues. Only ratings of a NRSRO may be used for the regulatory purposes of rating. Includes Moody’s, 
S&P, Fitch, and Duff & Phelps. 

Offered Price.  See also "Ask Price." 

Open Market Operations.  A Federal Reserve monetary policy tactic entailing the purchase or sale of government 
securities in the open market by the Federal Reserve System from and to primary dealers in order to influence the 
money supply, credit conditions, and interest rates. 

Par Value.  The face value, stated value, or maturity value of a security. 

Physical Delivery.  Delivery of readily available underlying assets at contract maturity. 

Portfolio.  Collection of securities and investments held by an investor. 

Premium.  The amount by which a bond or other financial instrument sells above its face value. See also 
"Discount." 

Primary Dealer.  A designation given to certain government securities dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New 
York. Primary dealers can buy and sell government securities directly with the Fed. Primary dealers also submit 
daily reports of market activity and security positions held to the Fed and are subject to its informal oversight. 
Primary dealers are the largest buyers and sellers by volume in the U.S. Treasury securities market. 

Prime Paper.  Commercial paper of high quality. Highest rated paper is A-1+/A-1 by S&P and P-1 by Moody’s. 

Principal.  Face value of a financial instrument on which interest accrues. May be less than par value if some 
principal has been repaid or retired. For a transaction, principal is par value times price and includes any premium 
or discount. 

Prudent Expert Rule. Standard that requires that a fiduciary manage a portfolio with the care, skill, prudence, and 
diligence, under the circumstances then prevailing, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with 
such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. This statement differs 
from the “prudent person” rule in that familiarity with such matters suggests a higher standard than simple prudence. 

Prudent Investor Standard.  Standard that requires that when investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, 
exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated 
needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in 
the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity 
needs of the agency. More stringent than the “prudent person” standard as it implies a level of knowledge 
commensurate with the responsibility at hand. 

Qualified Public Depository - Per Subsection 280.02(26), F.S., “qualified public depository” means any bank, 
savings bank, or savings association that: 
 

1. Is organized and exists under the laws of the United States, the laws of this state or any other state or 
territory of the United States. 

 
2. Has its principal place of business in this state or has a branch office in this state which is authorized under 

the laws of this state or of the United States to receive deposits in this state. 
 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 26 

3. Has deposit insurance under the provision of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 
ss.1811 et seq. 

 
4. Has procedures and practices for accurate identification, classification, reporting, and collateralization of 

public deposits. 
 

5. Meets all requirements of Chapter 280, F.S. 
 

6. Has been designated by the Chief Financial Officer as a qualified public depository. 

Range Note.  A type of structured note that accrues interest daily at a set coupon rate that is tied to an index. Most 
range notes have two coupon levels; a higher accrual rate for the period the index is within a designated range, the 
lower accrual rate for the period that the index falls outside the designated range. This lower rate may be zero and 
may result in zero earnings. 

Rate of Return.  Amount of income received from an investment, expressed as a percentage of the amount invested.   

Realized Gains (Losses).  The difference between the sale price of an investment and its book value. Gains/losses 
are “realized” when the security is actually sold, as compared to “unrealized” gains/losses which are based on 
current market value. See “Unrealized Gains (Losses).” 

Reference Bills:  FHLMC’s short-term debt program created to supplement its existing discount note program by 
offering issues from one month through one year, auctioned on a weekly or on an alternating four-week basis 
(depending upon maturity) offered in sizeable volumes ($1 billion and up) on a cycle of regular, standardized 
issuance. Globally sponsored and distributed, Reference Bill issues are intended to encourage active trading and 
market-making and facilitate the development of a term repo market. The program was designed to offer predictable 
supply, pricing transparency, and liquidity, thereby providing alternatives to U.S. Treasury bills. FHLMC’s 
Reference Bills are unsecured general corporate obligations. This program supplements the corporation’s existing 
discount note program. Issues under the Reference program constitute the same credit standing as other FHLMC 
discount notes; they simply add organization and liquidity to the short-term Agency discount note market. 

Reference Notes:  FHLMC’s intermediate-term debt program with issuances of 2, 3, 5, 10, and 30-year maturities. 
Initial issuances range from $2 - $6 billion with re-openings ranging $1 - $4 billion.   

The notes are high-quality bullet structures securities that pay interest semiannually. Issues under the Reference 
program constitute the same credit standing as other FHLMC notes; they simply add organization and liquidity to 
the intermediate- and long-term Agency market. 

Repurchase Agreement (Repo).  A short-term investment vehicle where an investor agrees to buy securities from 
a counterparty and simultaneously agrees to resell the securities back to the counterparty at an agreed upon time 
and for an agreed upon price. The difference between the purchase price and the sale price represents interest earned 
on the agreement. In effect, it represents a collateralized loan to the investor, where the securities are the collateral. 
Can be DVP, where securities are delivered to the investor’s custodial bank, or “tri-party” where the securities are 
delivered to a third party intermediary. Any type of security can be used as “collateral,” but only some types provide 
the investor with special bankruptcy protection under the law. Repos should be undertaken only when an appropriate 
Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) approved master repurchase agreement is in place. 

Reverse Repurchase Agreement (Reverse Repo).  A repo from the point of view of the original seller of securities. 
Used by dealers to finance their inventory of securities by essentially borrowing at short-term rates. Can also be 
used to leverage a portfolio and in this sense, can be considered risky if used improperly. 

Safekeeping.  Service offered for a fee, usually by financial institutions, for the holding of securities and other 
valuables. Safekeeping is a component of custody services. 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 27 

Secondary Market.  Markets for the purchase and sale of any previously issued financial instrument. 

Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (SIFMA).  The bond market trade association 
representing the largest securities markets in the world. In addition to publishing a Master Repurchase Agreement, 
widely accepted as the industry standard document for Repurchase Agreements, the SIFMA also recommends bond 
market closures and early closes due to holidays. 

Securities Lending.  An arrangement between and investor and a custody bank that allows the custody bank to 
“loan” the investors investment holdings, reinvest the proceeds in permitted investments, and shares any profits 
with the investor. Should be governed by a securities lending agreement. Can increase the risk of a portfolio in that 
the investor takes on the default risk on the reinvestment at the discretion of the custodian. 

Sinking Fund.  A separate accumulation of cash or investments (including earnings on investments) in a fund in 
accordance with the terms of a trust agreement or indenture, funded by periodic deposits by the issuer (or other 
entity responsible for debt service), for the purpose of assuring timely availability of moneys for payment of debt 
service. Usually used in connection with term bonds. 

Spread.  The difference between the price of a security and similar maturity U.S. Treasury investments, expressed 
in percentage terms or basis points. A spread can also be the absolute difference in yield between two securities. 
The securities can be in different markets or within the same securities market between different credits, sectors, or 
other relevant factors. 

Standard & Poor's.   One of several NRSROs that provide credit ratings on corporate and municipal debt issues. 

STRIPS (Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities).  Acronym applied to U.S. 
Treasury securities that have had their coupons and principal repayments separated into individual zero-coupon 
Treasury securities. The same technique and "strips" description can be applied to non-Treasury securities (e.g., 
FNMA strips). 

Structured Notes.  Notes that have imbedded into their structure options such as step-up coupons or derivative-
based returns. 

Supranational. Supranational organizations are international financial institutions that are generally established by 
agreements among nations, with member nations contributing capital and participating in management. These 
agreements provide for limited immunity from the laws of member countries. Bonds issued by these institutions 
are part of the broader class of Supranational, Sovereign, and Non-U.S. Agency (SSA) sector bonds. Supranational 
bonds finance economic and infrastructure development and support environmental protection, poverty reduction, 
and renewable energy around the globe. For example, the World Bank, International Finance Corporation (IFC), 
and African Development Bank (AfDB) have “green bond” programs specifically designed for energy resource 
conservation and management. Supranational bonds, which are issued by multi-national organizations that 
transcend national boundaries. Examples include the World Bank, African Development Bank, and European 
Investment Bank. 

Swap.  Trading one asset for another. 

TAP Notes:  Federal Agency notes issued under the FHLB TAP program. Launched in 6/99 as a refinement to the 
FHLB bullet bond auction process. In a break from the FHLB’s traditional practice of bringing numerous small 
issues to market with similar maturities, the TAP Issue Program uses the four most common maturities and reopens 
them up regularly through a competitive auction. These maturities (2, 3, 5, and 10 year) will remain open for the 
calendar quarter, after which they will be closed and a new series of TAP issues will be opened to replace them. 
This reduces the number of separate bullet bonds issued, but generates enhanced awareness and liquidity in the 
marketplace through increased issue size and secondary market volume. 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 28 

Tennessee Valley Authority (TVA).  One of the large Federal Agencies. A wholly owned corporation of the 
United States government that was established in 1933 to develop the resources of the Tennessee Valley region in 
order to strengthen the regional and national economy and the national defense. Power operations are separated 
from non-power operations. TVA securities represent obligations of TVA, payable solely from TVA's net power 
proceeds, and are neither obligations of nor guaranteed by the United States. TVA is currently authorized to issue 
debt up to $30 billion. Under this authorization, TVA may also obtain advances from the U.S. Treasury of up to 
$150 million. Frequent issuer of discount notes, agency notes, and callable agency securities.   

Total Return.  Investment performance measured over a period of time that includes coupon interest, interest on 
interest, and both realized and unrealized gains or losses. Total return includes, therefore, any market value 
appreciation/depreciation on investments held at period end. 

Treasuries.  Collective term used to describe debt instruments backed by the U.S. government and issued through 
the U.S. Department of the Treasury. Includes Treasury bills, Treasury notes, and Treasury bonds.  Also a 
benchmark term used as a basis by which the yields of non-Treasury securities are compared (e.g., "trading at 50 
basis points over Treasuries"). 

Treasury Bills (T-Bills).  Short-term direct obligations of the United States government issued with an original 
term of one year or less. Treasury bills are sold at a discount from face value and do not pay interest before maturity. 
The difference between the purchase price of the bill and the maturity value is the interest earned on the bill. 
Currently, the U.S. Treasury issues 4-week, 13-week, and 26-week T-Bills. 

Treasury Bonds.  Long-term interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. government and issued with 
maturities of ten years and longer by the U.S. Department of the Treasury.  

Treasury Notes.  Intermediate interest-bearing debt securities backed by the U.S. government and issued with 
maturities ranging from one to ten years by the U.S. Department of the Treasury. The Treasury currently issues 2-
year, 3-year, 5-year, and 10-year Treasury Notes. 

Trustee.  A bank designated by an issuer of securities as the custodian of funds and official representative of 
bondholders. Trustees are appointed to insure compliance with the bond documents and to represent bondholders 
in enforcing their contract with the issuer. 

Uniform Net Capital Rule.  SEC Rule 15c3-1 that outlines the minimum net capital ratio (ratio of indebtedness to 
net liquid capital) of member firms and non-member broker/dealers. 

Unrealized Gains (Losses).  The difference between the market value of an investment and its book value. 
Gains/losses are “realized” when the security is actually sold, as compared to “unrealized” gains/losses which are 
based on current market value. See also “Realized Gains (Losses).” 

Variable-Rate Security.  A bond that bears interest at a rate that varies over time based on a specified schedule of 
adjustment (e.g., daily, weekly, monthly, semi-annually, or annually). See also “Floating Rate Note.” 

Weighted Average Maturity (or just “Average Maturity”).  The average maturity of all securities and 
investments of a portfolio, determined by multiplying the par or principal value of each security or investment by 
its maturity (days or years), summing the products, and dividing the sum by the total principal value of the portfolio. 
A simple measure of risk of a fixed-income portfolio. 

Weighted Average Maturity to Call.  The average maturity of all securities and investments of a portfolio, 
adjusted to substitute the first call date per security for maturity date for those securities with call provisions. 

Yield Curve.  A graphic depiction of yields on like securities in relation to remaining maturities spread over a time 
line. The traditional yield curve depicts yields on U.S. Treasuries, although yield curves exist for Federal Agencies 
and various credit quality corporates as well. Yield curves can be positively sloped (normal) where longer-term 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 29 

investments have higher yields, or “inverted” (uncommon) where longer-term investments have lower yields than 
shorter ones. 

Yield to Call (YTC).  Same as “Yield to Maturity,” except the return is measured to the first call date rather than 
the maturity date. Yield to call can be significantly higher or lower than a security’s yield to maturity. 

Yield to Maturity (YTM).  Calculated return on an investment, assuming all cash-flows from the security are 
reinvested at the same original yield. Can be higher or lower than the coupon rate depending on market rates and 
whether the security was purchased at a premium or discount. There are different conventions for calculating YTM 
for various types of securities. 

Yield.  There are numerous methods of yield determination. In this glossary, see also "Current Yield,” "Yield 
Curve," "Yield to Call," and "Yield to Maturity." 
 
 



 

Central Florida Expressway Authority Investment Policy Page 30 

Attachment B 
Investment Pool/Fund Questionnaire 

 
 

1. A description of eligible investment securities, and a written statement of investment policy and objectives. 
 

2. A description of interest calculations and how it is distributed, and how gains and losses are treated. 
 

3. A description of how the securities are safeguarded (including the settlement processes), and how often the 
securities are priced and the program audited. 

 
4. A description of who may invest in the program, how often, what size deposit and withdrawal are allowed. 

 
5. A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings. 

 
6. Are reserves, retained earnings, etc. utilized by the pool/fund? 

 
7. A fee schedule, and when and how is it assessed. 

 
8. Is the pool/fund eligible for bond proceeds and/or will it accept such proceeds? 
 
9. Are there any liquidity gates? 
 
8.10. Are there any redemption fees?  

 
 

 


	8.2.21 Finance Committee Agenda
	C. Approval of March 31, 2021 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes
	D.1 - Bond Refundings Update
	D.2 - Review of Debt Policy
	D.3 - Review of Interest Rate Risk Management Policy
	D.4 - Annual Investment Performance Review
	D.5 - Review of Investment Policy



